
Committee Agenda

1

AREA PLANNING SUB-COMMITTEE SOUTH
Wednesday, 26th April, 2017
You are invited to attend the next meeting of Area Planning Sub-Committee South, which 
will be held at: 

Roding Valley High School, Brook Road, Loughton, Essex. IG10 3JA.
on Wednesday, 26th April, 2017
at 7.30 pm .

Glen Chipp
Chief Executive

Democratic Services 
Officer

J. Leither Tel: (01992) 564243
Email: democraticservices@eppingforestdc.gov.uk

Members:

Councillors G Chambers (Chairman), A Patel (Vice-Chairman), R Baldwin, A Beales, 
R Brookes, K Chana, L Girling, S Heap, R Jennings, J Jennings, H Kauffman, J Knapman, 
A Lion, L Mead, G Mohindra, S Murray, C P Pond, C C Pond, C Roberts, D Roberts, 
B Sandler, S Watson and D Wixley

WEBCASTING/FILMING NOTICE

Please note: this meeting may be filmed for live or subsequent broadcast via the 
Council's internet site - at the start of the meeting the Chairman will confirm if all or 
part of the meeting is being filmed.  The meeting may also be otherwise filmed by 
third parties with the Chairman’s permission.

You should be aware that the Council is a Data Controller under the Data Protection 
Act. Data collected during this webcast will be retained in accordance with the 
Council’s published policy.

Therefore by entering the Chamber and using the public seating area, you are 
consenting to being filmed and to the possible use of those images and sound 
recordings for web casting and/or training purposes. If members of the public do not 
wish to have their image captured they should speak to the webcasting officer or 
otherwise indicate to the Chairman before the start of the meeting.

If you have any queries regarding this, please contact the Public Relations Manager 
on 01992 564039.



Area Planning Sub-Committee South Wednesday, 26 April 2017

2

1. WEBCASTING INTRODUCTION  

1. This meeting is to be webcast; 

2. Members are reminded of the need to activate their microphones before 
speaking; and 

3. the Chairman will read the following announcement:

“I would like to remind everyone present that this meeting will be broadcast live to the 
internet (or filmed) and will be capable of repeated viewing (or another use by such 
third parties).

If you are seated in the public seating area it is likely that the recording cameras will 
capture your image and this will result in the possibility that your image will become 
part of the broadcast.

This may infringe your human and data protection rights and if you wish to avoid this 
you should speak the webcasting officer.”

2. ADVICE TO PUBLIC AND SPEAKERS ATTENDING THE COUNCIL PLANNING 
SUB-COMMITTEES  (Pages 5 - 10)

General advice to people attending the meeting is attached together with a plan 
showing the location of the meeting.

3. MINUTES  (Pages 11 - 36)

To confirm the minutes of the last meeting of the Sub-Committee held on 29 March 
2017.

4. APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE  

5. DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST  

(Director of Governance) To declare interests in any item on this agenda.

6. ANY OTHER BUSINESS  

Section 100B(4)(b) of the Local Government Act 1972, requires that the permission of 
the Chairman be obtained, after prior notice to the Chief Executive, before urgent 
business not specified in the agenda (including a supplementary agenda of which the 
statutory period of notice has been given) may be transacted.

7. DEVELOPMENT CONTROL  (Pages 37 - 66)

(Director of Governance)  To consider planning applications as set out in the attached 
schedule

Background Papers:  (i)  Applications for determination – applications listed on the 
schedule, letters of representation received regarding the applications which are 
summarised on the schedule.  (ii)  Enforcement of Planning Control – the reports of 
officers inspecting the properties listed on the schedule in respect of which 
consideration is to be given to the enforcement of planning control.



Area Planning Sub-Committee South Wednesday, 26 April 2017

3

8. EXCLUSION OF PUBLIC AND PRESS  

Exclusion: To consider whether, under Section 100(A)(4) of the Local Government 
Act 1972, the public and press should be excluded from the meeting for the items of 
business set out below on grounds that they will involve the likely disclosure of exempt 
information as defined in the following paragraph(s) of Part 1 of Schedule 12A of the 
Act (as amended) or are confidential under Section 100(A)(2):

Agenda Item No Subject Exempt Information 
Paragraph Number

Nil Nil Nil

The Local Government (Access to Information) (Variation) Order 2006, which came 
into effect on 1 March 2006, requires the Council to consider whether maintaining the 
exemption listed above outweighs the potential public interest in disclosing the 
information. Any member who considers that this test should be applied to any 
currently exempted matter on this agenda should contact the proper officer at least 24 
hours prior to the meeting.

Background Papers:  Article 17 - Access to Information, Procedure Rules of the 
Constitution define background papers as being documents relating to the subject 
matter of the report which in the Proper Officer's opinion:

(a) disclose any facts or matters on which the report or an important part of the 
report is based;  and

(b) have been relied on to a material extent in preparing the report and does not 
include published works or those which disclose exempt or confidential 
information and in respect of executive reports, the advice of any political 
advisor.

The Council will make available for public inspection for four years after the date of the 
meeting one copy of each of the documents on the list of background papers.



This page is intentionally left blank



Revised ST (October 2016)

Advice to Public and Speakers at the Council’s District Development Management 
Committee and Area Plans Sub-Committees

Are the meetings open to the public?

Yes all our meetings are open for you to attend. Only in special circumstances are the public 
excluded.

When and where is the meeting?

Details of the location, date and time of the meeting are shown at the top of the front page of the 
agenda along with the details of the contact officer and Members of the Committee. 

Meetings of the District Development Management Committee, Area Plans Sub-Committee East 
and Area Plans Sub-Committee West are held at the Civic Offices in Epping. Meetings of Area 
Plans Sub-Committee South are held at Roding Valley High School in Loughton.

Can I speak?

If you wish to speak you must register with Democratic Services by 4.00 p.m. on the day 
before the meeting, by ringing the number shown on the top of the front page of the agenda. 
Speaking to a Planning Officer will not register you to speak; you must register with Democratic 
Service. Speakers are not permitted on Planning Enforcement or legal issues.

Who can speak?

Three classes of speakers are generally allowed: One objector (maybe on behalf of a group), the 
local Parish or Town Council and the applicant or his/her agent. In some cases, a representative 
of another authority consulted on the application may also be allowed to speak.

What can I say?

You will be allowed to have your say about the application but you must bear in mind that you are 
limited to three minutes. At the discretion of the Chairman, speakers may clarify matters relating 
to their presentation and answer questions from Committee members. 

If you are not present by the time your item is considered, the Committee will determine the 
application in your absence.

If you have registered to speak on a planning application to be considered by the District 
Development Management Committee, Area Plans Sub-Committee East or Area Plans Sub-
Committee West, you will address the Committee from within the Council Chamber at the Civic 
Offices. If you simply wish to attend a meeting of any of these Committees to observe the 
proceedings, you will be seated in the public gallery of the Council Chamber.

Can I give the Councillors more information about my application or my objection?

Yes you can but it must not be presented at the meeting. If you wish to send further 
information to Councillors, their contact details can be obtained through Democratic Services or 
our website www.eppingforestdc.gov.uk. Any information sent to Councillors should be copied to 
the Planning Officer dealing with the application.

How are the applications considered?

The Committee will consider applications in the agenda order. On each case they will listen to an 
outline of the application by the Planning Officer. They will then hear any speakers’ presentations. 

The order of speaking will be (1) Objector, (2) Parish/Town Council, then (3) Applicant or his/her 
agent. The Committee will then debate the application and vote on either the recommendations of 

Page 5

Agenda Item 2

http://www.eppingforesdc.gov.uk/


Revised ST (October 2016)

officers in the agenda or a proposal made by the Committee. Should the Committee propose to 
follow a course of action different to officer recommendation, it is required to give its reasons for 
doing so.

An Area Plans Sub-Committee is required to refer applications to the District Development 
Management Committee where:

(a) the Sub-Committee’s proposed decision is a substantial departure from:

(i) the Council's approved policy framework; or
(ii) the development or other approved plan for the area; or
(iii) it would be required to be referred to the Secretary of State for approval as 

required by current government circular or directive;

(b) the refusal of consent may involve the payment of compensation; or

(c) the District Development Management Committee have previously considered the 
application or type of development and has so requested; or

(d) the Sub-Committee wish, for any reason, to refer the application to the District 
Development Management Committee for decision by resolution.

Further Information?

Can be obtained through Democratic Services or our leaflet ‘Your Choice, Your Voice’

Page 6



Area Plans Subcommittee South – Location Plan 

PDF created with pdfFactory Pro trial version www.software-partners.co.uk

Page 7

http://www.software-partners.co.uk
http://www.software-partners.co.uk


This page is intentionally left blank



Area Planning Subcommittee South 2016-17
Members of the Committee and Wards Represented:

Chairman
Cllr Chambers
Buckhurst Hill 

West

Vice-Chairman
Cllr Patel

Buckhurst Hill 
West

Cllr Baldwin
Loughton 

Forest

Cllr Beales
Loughton 

Forest

Cllr Brookes
Loughton 
Roding

Cllr Chana
Grange Hill

Cllr Girling
Loughton 
Broadway

Cllr Heap
Buckhurst 
Hill East

Cllr B Jennings
Loughton St 

John’s

Cllr J Jennings
Loughton St 

Mary’s

Cllr Kauffman
Loughton St 

Mary’s

Cllr Knapman
Chigwell 
Village

Cllr Lion
Grange Hill

Cllr Mead
Loughton 
Fairmead

Cllr Mohindra 
Grange Hill

Cllr Murray 
Loughton 
Roding

Cllr C C Pond 
Loughton 
Broadway

Cllr C P Pond
Loughton St 

John’s

Cllr Watson
Buckhurst Hill 

West

Cllr Wixley
Loughton 
Fairmead

Cllr D Roberts
Loughton
Alderton

Cllr Sandler
Chigwell Row

Cllr C Roberts
Loughton 
Alderton

Page 9



This page is intentionally left blank



1

EPPING FOREST DISTRICT COUNCIL
COMMITTEE MINUTES

Committee: Area Planning Sub-Committee 
South

Date: 29 March 2017 

Place: Roding Valley High School, Brook 
Road, Loughton, Essex. IG10 3JA.

Time: 7.30  - 10.45 pm

Members 
Present:

A Patel (Vice-Chairman, in the Chair), R Baldwin, A Beales, R Brookes, 
K Chana, S Heap, H Kauffman, J Knapman, G Mohindra, C P Pond, 
C C Pond, C Roberts, D Roberts, B Sandler and D Wixley

Other 
Councillors:

Apologies: G Chambers, L Girling, R Jennings, J Jennings, A Lion, L Mead, S Murray 
and S Watson

Officers 
Present:

S Solon (Principal Planning Officer), J Leither (Democratic Services Officer), 
T Carne (Public Relations and Marketing Officer) and A Hendry (Senior 
Democratic Services Officer)

65. WEBCASTING INTRODUCTION 

The Chairman made a short address to remind all present that the meeting would be 
broadcast on the Internet, and that the Council had adopted a protocol for the 
webcasting of its meetings.

66. MINUTES 

RESOLVED:

That the minutes of the meeting held on 1 March 2017 be taken as read and 
signed by the Chairman as a correct record, subject to the webcast being 
checked to confirm that item EPF/2473/16, Woodview, Lambourne Road, 
Chigwell was recorded correctly. This has been verified following examination 
of the webcast.

67. DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST 

(a) Pursuant to the Council’s Member Code of Conduct, Councillors C C Pond C 
P Pond and D Wixley declared a non-pecuniary interest in the following item of the 
agenda, by virtue of the Objector being known to them. The Councillors had 
determined that their interest was non-pecuniary but would leave the meeting for the 
consideration of the application and voting thereon under the public perception test:

 EPF/0053/17 – Tennis Courts, Roding Valley High School. Alderton Hill, 
Loughton.

Page 11

Agenda Item 3



Area Planning Sub-Committee South 29 March 2017

2

(b) Pursuant to the Council’s Member Code of Conduct, Councillor C P Pond 
declared a non-pecuniary interest in the following item of the agenda, by virtue of the 
Objector being known to her. The Councillor had determined that her interest was 
non-pecuniary and would remain in the meeting for the consideration of the 
application and voting thereon:

 EPF/0055/17 – Land to the rear of 268-278 High Road, Loughton.

(c) Pursuant to the Council’s Member Code of Conduct, Councillor R Brookes 
declared a non-pecuniary interest in the following item of the agenda, by virtue of the 
Objector being well known to her. The Councillor had determined that her interest 
was non-pecuniary but would leave the meeting for the consideration of the 
application and voting thereon under the public perception test:

 EPF/0055/17 – Land to the rear of 268-278 High Road, Loughton.

(d) Pursuant to the Council’s Member Code of Conduct, Councillor C P Pond 
declared a non-pecuniary interest in the following item of the agenda, by virtue of the 
Objector being known to her. The Councillor had determined that her interest was 
non-pecuniary but would leave the meeting for the consideration of the application 
and voting thereon under the public perception test:

 EPF/0055/17 – Land to the rear of 268-278 High Road, Loughton.

68. ANY OTHER BUSINESS 

The Sub-Committee noted that there was no other urgent business for consideration.

69. DEVELOPMENT CONTROL 

The Sub-Committee considered a schedule of applications for planning permission.

RESOLVED:

That the planning applications numbered 1 – 11 be determined as set out in 
the attached schedule to these minutes.

70. EXCLUSION OF PUBLIC AND PRESS 

The Sub-Committee noted that there was no business which necessitated the 
exclusion of the public and press.

CHAIRMAN

Page 12



Report Item No: 1

APPLICATION No: EPF/1830/16

SITE ADDRESS: Rear of Alandale Scaffolding 
Langston Road 
Loughton
Essex
IG10 3TQ

PARISH: Loughton

WARD: Loughton Broadway

DESCRIPTION OF 
PROPOSAL:

Construction of vehicular parking area and access road.

 DECISION: Grant Permission (With Conditions)

Click on the link below to view related plans and documents for this case:
http://planpub.eppingforestdc.gov.uk/NIM.websearch/ExternalEntryPoint.aspx?SEARCH_TYPE=1&DOC_CLASS_CODE=PL&FOLDER1_REF=585754

CONDITIONS 

1 The development hereby permitted must be begun not later than the expiration of 
three years beginning with the date of this notice.

2 The development hereby permitted will be completed strictly in accordance with the 
approved drawings nos: 6986-PL-100 Rev P5, 6986-PL-101 Rev P4 and 6986-PL-
102 Rev P2.

3 Works to construct the car park hereby approved shall not be commenced until the 
approved access road to it from Langston Road is completed to road base with 
sufficient strength to support a vehicle weight of 32 tonnes, together with measures 
to control vehicle speed along the access road in the course of construction of the 
development.

4 Prior to the commencement of the development, details of the proposed access road 
in section, demonstrating its level in relation to adjacent land along its length, 
together with details of any retaining walls and grading of land between the access 
road and neighbouring land, shall be submitted to and approved in writing by the 
Local Planning Authority.  The development shall be carried out in accordance with 
the approved details, unless otherwise agreed in writing by the Local Planning 
Authority.

5 Prior to the commencement of the development, details of the means to limit the 
speed of vehicles using the car park and access road, including details of the layout 
of the car park and alignment of the access road, shall be submitted to and 
approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority.  The development shall be 
carried out in accordance with the details approved and the approved measures to 

3

Minute Item 69

Page 13

http://planpub.eppingforestdc.gov.uk/NIM.websearch/ExternalEntryPoint.aspx?SEARCH_TYPE=1&DOC_CLASS_CODE=PL&FOLDER1_REF=585754


limit vehicle speed shall be retained permanently unless otherwise agreed in writing 
by the Local Planning Authority.

6 No materials, including construction and waste materials, shall be deposited on land 
beyond the extent of the car park and access road shown on the approved plans.

7 Prior to the commencement of the development hereby approved, details of the 
layout of the car park, indicating a minimum parking bay size of 5.5m by 2.9m, 
together with details of pedestrian access between the car park and Langston Road, 
shall be submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority.  The 
development shall be carried out in accordance with the details approved, with all 
parking spaces clearly marked out.  Thereafter all parking spaces in the car park 
shall comply with the minimum parking bay size specified in this condition and the 
approved pedestrian access shall be retained permanently, unless otherwise agreed 
in writing by the Local Planning Authority.

8 Prior to the commencement of the development hereby approved, details of 
measures to ensure its security, including details of its lighting and means of 
enclosure shall be submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning 
Authority.  The development shall be carried out in accordance with the approved 
details and thereafter the approved security measures shall be retained permanently 
unless otherwise agreed in writing by the Local Planning Authority.

9 The development hereby approved shall be carried out and operated in accordance 
with the details of Flood Risk Assessment produced by EAS, dated January 2017 
[JOB NUMBER: 866, DOCUMENT REF: Loughton M11 Land January 2017, 
REVISIONS: Final 2] unless otherwise agreed in writing by the Local Planning 
Authority.

10 Notwithstanding the details indicated in the Flood Risk Assessment produced by 
EAS, dated January 2017, no development shall take place until details of foul and 
surface water disposal have been submitted to and approved in writing by the Local 
Planning Authority. The development shall be implemented in accordance with such 
agreed details.

11 No development, including works of demolition or site clearance, shall take place 
until a Tree Protection Plan Arboricultural Method Statement and site monitoring 
schedule in accordance with BS:5837:2012 (Trees in relation to design, demolition 
and construction - recommendations) has been submitted to the Local Planning 
Authority and approved in writing. The development shall be carried out only in 
accordance with the approved documents unless the Local Planning Authority gives 
its written consent to any variation.

12 No development shall take place, including site clearance or other preparatory work, 
until full details of both hard and soft landscape works (including tree planting) and 
implementation programme (linked to the development schedule) have been 
submitted to an approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority. These works 
shall be carried out as approved. The hard landscaping details shall include, as 

4 Page 14



appropriate, and in addition to details of existing features to be retained: proposed 
finished levels or contours; means of enclosure; car parking layouts; other minor 
artefacts and structures, including signs and lighting and functional services above 
and below ground. The details of soft landscape works shall include plans for 
planting or establishment by any means and full written specifications and schedules 
of plants, including species, plant sizes and proposed numbers /densities where 
appropriate. If within a period of five years from the date of the planting or 
establishment of any tree, or shrub or plant, that tree, shrub, or plant or any 
replacement is removed, uprooted or destroyed or dies or becomes seriously 
damaged or defective another tree or shrub, or plant of the same species and size 
as that originally planted shall be planted at the same place, unless the Local 
Planning Authority gives its written consent to any variation.

13 No development shall take place, including any works of demolition, until a 
Construction Method Statement has been submitted to, and approved in writing by, 
the Local Planning Authority. The approved Statement shall be adhered to 
throughout the construction period. The Statement shall provide for:

1. The parking of vehicles of site operatives and visitors
2. Loading and unloading of plant and materials
3. Storage of plant and materials used in constructing the development
4. The erection and maintenance of security hoarding including decorative displays.
5. Measures to control the emission of dust and dirt during construction, including 
wheel washing.
6. A scheme for recycling/disposing of waste resulting from demolition and 
construction works.

14 No development shall take place until a detailed remediation scheme to bring the 
site to a condition suitable for the intended use has been submitted to and approved 
by the Local Planning Authority. The development shall be carried out in accordance 
with the approved remediation scheme unless otherwise agreed in writing by the 
Local Planning Authority. The remediation scheme must include all works to be 
undertaken, proposed remediation objectives and remediation criteria, timetable of 
works and site management procedures and any necessary long term maintenance 
and monitoring programme. The scheme must ensure that the site will not qualify as 
contaminated land under Part 2A of the Environmental Protection Act 1990 or any 
subsequent version, in relation to the intended use of the land after remediation. 
[Note: This condition must be formally discharged by the Local Planning Authority 
before the submission of details pursuant to the verification report condition that 
follows]

15 Following completion of measures identified in the approved remediation scheme 
and prior to the first use or occupation of the development, a verification report that 
demonstrates the effectiveness of the remediation carried out must be produced 
together with any necessary monitoring and maintenance programme and copies of 
any waste transfer notes relating to exported and imported soils shall be submitted 
to the Local Planning Authority for approval. The approved monitoring and 
maintenance programme shall be implemented. 

16 In the event that any evidence of potential contamination is found at any time when 
carrying out the approved development that was not previously identified in the 
approved Phase 2 report, it must be reported in writing immediately to the Local 

5Page 15



Planning Authority. An investigation and risk assessment must be undertaken in 
accordance with a methodology previously approved by the Local Planning 
Authority. Following completion of measures identified in the approved remediation 
scheme, a verification report must be prepared, which is subject to the approval in 
writing of the Local Planning Authority in accordance with the immediately above 
condition.  

17 The car park hereby approved shall include a minimum of 6 electric vehicle charging 
points, unless otherwise agreed in writing by the Local Planning Authority.

6 Page 16



Report Item No: 2

APPLICATION No: EPF/0053/17

SITE ADDRESS: Tennis Courts 
Roding Valley High School
Alderton Hill
Loughton
Essex
IG10 3JD

PARISH: Loughton

WARD: Loughton St Marys

DESCRIPTION OF 
PROPOSAL:

Amendment to planning permission EPF/1103/15 (for the erection 
of 38 'Retirement Living' apartments for the elderly) comprising the 
provision of two additional apartments in the roof/loft area at 
second floor facing the internal courtyard.

DECISION: Refuse Permission

Click on the link below to view related plans and documents for this case:
http://planpub.eppingforestdc.gov.uk/NIM.websearch/ExternalEntryPoint.aspx?SEARCH_TYPE=1&DOC_CLASS_CODE=PL&FOLDER1_REF=590754

REASONS FOR REFUSAL

1 By reason of the introduction of dormer windows and roof lights in the east facing 
roof slope the proposal would result in a building that appears entirely three-storey 
when seen from the rear gardens of neighbouring houses to the east of the 
application site, including 13, 15 and 15A Alderton Hill. That appearance would not 
respect the character and appearance of the locality, to the detriment of the visual 
amenities of the occupants of neighbouring dwellings, contrary to Local Plan and 
Alterations policies DBE1(i) and DBE2, which are consistent with the National 
Planning Policy Framework.

2 By reason of the introduction of dormer windows and roof lights in the east facing 
roof slope the proposal would give rise to an excessive degree of actual and 
perceived overlooking of the rear garden of 13 Alderton Hill, to the detriment of the 
living conditions of that dwellinghouse. Accordingly, the proposal is contrary to Local 
Plan and Alterations policy DBE9, which is consistent with the National Planning 
Policy Framework.

Way forward:

Members concluded their objections were fundamental and could not offer any way forward for the 
proposal.

7Page 17

http://planpub.eppingforestdc.gov.uk/NIM.websearch/ExternalEntryPoint.aspx?SEARCH_TYPE=1&DOC_CLASS_CODE=PL&FOLDER1_REF=590754


123
Report Item No: 3

APPLICATION No: EPF/0055/17

SITE ADDRESS: Land to the rear of 268-278 High Road
Loughton
Essex
IG10 4BG

PARISH: Loughton

WARD: Loughton St Marys

DESCRIPTION OF 
PROPOSAL:

New 3 storey development of 12 flats with associated parking and 
amenity spaces.

DECISION: Grant Permission (With Conditions)

Click on the link below to view related plans and documents for this case:
http://planpub.eppingforestdc.gov.uk/NIM.websearch/ExternalEntryPoint.aspx?SEARCH_TYPE=1&DOC_CLASS_CODE=PL&FOLDER1_REF=590756

CONDITIONS 

1 The development hereby permitted must be begun not later than the expiration of 
three years beginning with the date of this notice.

2 The development hereby permitted will be completed strictly in accordance with the 
approved drawings nos: 
1810/25
1810/01C
1810/02D
1810/03D
1810/04B
1810/20A
1810/21B
1810/22B
1810/23A
1810/55
Design & Access Statement

3 No construction works above ground level shall take place until documentary and 
photographic details of the types and colours of the external finishes have been 
submitted to and approved by the Local Planning Authority, in writing. The 
development shall be implemented in accordance with such approved details.

8 Page 18

http://planpub.eppingforestdc.gov.uk/NIM.websearch/ExternalEntryPoint.aspx?SEARCH_TYPE=1&DOC_CLASS_CODE=PL&FOLDER1_REF=590756


4 No works shall take place until a detailed surface water drainage scheme for the 
site, based on sustainable drainage principles and an assessment of the 
hydrological and hydro geological context of the development, has been submitted 
to and approved in writing by the local planning authority The scheme shall 
subsequently be implemented prior to occupation and should include but not be 
limited to:
infiltration tests in line with BRE365
calculation of the brownfield runoff rate and demonstration of 50% betterment
details of SuDS features to provide the required storage up to a 1 in 100 plus climate 
change in line with current best practice (new allowances 19th February 2016 unless 
demonstrated to be inappropriate)
demonstrate compliance with the treatment indices approach in The CIRIA SuDS 
Manual C753
Evidence of the right to connect into the sewer if necessary

5 No works shall take place until a scheme to minimise flood risk of offsite flooding 
caused by surface water runoff and groundwater during construction works has 
been submitted to, and approved in writing by, the local planning authority. The 
scheme shall subsequently be implemented. The scheme shall be implemented as 
approved.

6 No works shall take place until a Maintenance Plan detailing the maintenance 
arrangements including who is responsible for different elements of the surface 
water drainage system and the maintenance activities/frequencies, has been 
submitted to and agreed, in writing, by the Local Planning Authority.

7 The applicant or any successor in title must maintain yearly logs of maintenance 
which should be carried out in accordance with any approved Maintenance Plan. 
These must be available for inspection upon a request by the Local Planning 
Authority.

8 A flood risk assessment and management and maintenance plan shall be submitted 
to and approved by the Local Planning Authority prior to commencement of 
development. The assessment shall include calculations of increased run-off and 
associated volume of storm detention using WinDes or other similar best practice 
tools. The approved measures shall be carried out prior to the substantial 
completion of the development and shall be adequately maintained in accordance 
with the management and maintenance plan.

9 No development shall take place until details of foul water disposal have been 
submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority. The 
development shall be implemented in accordance with such agreed details.

10 No development shall take place until a Phase 1 Land Contamination investigation 
has been carried out. A protocol for the investigation shall be submitted to and 
approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority before commencement of the 
Phase 1 investigation. The completed Phase 1 report shall be submitted to and 
approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority prior to the commencement of 
any necessary Phase 2 investigation. The report shall assess potential risks to 

9Page 19



present and proposed humans, property including buildings, crops, livestock, pets, 
woodland and service lines and pipes, adjoining land, groundwaters and surface 
waters, ecological systems, archaeological sites and ancient monuments and the 
investigation must be conducted in accordance with DEFRA and the Environment 
Agency's "Model Procedures for the Management of Land Contamination, CLR 11", 
or any subsequent version or additional regulatory guidance. 
[Note: This condition must be formally discharged by the Local Planning Authority 
before the submission of details pursuant to the Phase 2 site investigation condition 
that follows]

11 Should the Phase 1 Land Contamination preliminary risk assessment carried out 
under the above condition identify the presence of potentially unacceptable risks, no 
development shall take place until a Phase 2 site investigation has been carried out. 
A protocol for the investigation shall be submitted to and approved by the Local 
Planning Authority before commencement of the Phase 2 investigation. The 
completed Phase 2 investigation report, together with any necessary outline 
remediation options, shall be submitted to and approved by the Local Planning 
Authority prior to any redevelopment or remediation works being carried out. The 
report shall assess potential risks to present and proposed humans, property 
including buildings, crops, livestock, pets, woodland and service lines and pipes, 
adjoining land, groundwaters and surface waters, ecological systems, 
archaeological sites and ancient monuments and the investigation must be 
conducted in accordance with DEFRA and the Environment Agency's "Model 
Procedures for the Management of Land Contamination, CLR 11", or any 
subsequent version or additional regulatory guidance. 
[Note: This condition must be formally discharged by the Local Planning Authority 
before the submission of details pursuant to the remediation scheme condition that 
follows]

12 Should Land Contamination Remediation Works be identified as necessary under 
the above condition, no development shall take place until a detailed remediation 
scheme to bring the site to a condition suitable for the intended use has been 
submitted to and approved by the Local Planning Authority. The development shall 
be carried out in accordance with the approved remediation scheme unless 
otherwise agreed in writing by the Local Planning Authority. The remediation 
scheme must include all works to be undertaken, proposed remediation objectives 
and remediation criteria, timetable of works and site management procedures and 
any necessary long term maintenance and monitoring programme. The scheme 
must ensure that the site will not qualify as contaminated land under Part 2A of the 
Environmental Protection Act 1990 or any subsequent version, in relation to the 
intended use of the land after remediation. 
[Note: This condition must be formally discharged by the Local Planning Authority 
before the submission of details pursuant to the verification report condition that 
follows]

13 Following completion of measures identified in the approved remediation scheme 
and prior to the first use or occupation of the development, a verification report that 
demonstrates the effectiveness of the remediation carried out must be produced 
together with any necessary monitoring and maintenance programme and copies of 
any waste transfer notes relating to exported and imported soils shall be submitted 
to the Local Planning Authority for approval. The approved monitoring and 
maintenance programme shall be implemented. 

10 Page 20



14 In the event that any evidence of potential contamination is found at any time when 
carrying out the approved development that was not previously identified in the 
approved Phase 2 report, it must be reported in writing immediately to the Local 
Planning Authority. An investigation and risk assessment must be undertaken in 
accordance with a methodology previously approved by the Local Planning 
Authority. Following completion of measures identified in the approved remediation 
scheme, a verification report must be prepared, which is subject to the approval in 
writing of the Local Planning Authority in accordance with the immediately above 
condition.  

15 No piling shall take place until a piling method statement (detailing the depth and 
type of piling to be undertaken and the methodology by which such piling will be 
carried out, including measures to prevent and minimise the potential for damage to 
subsurface sewerage infrastructure, and the programme for the works) has been 
submitted to and approved in writing by the local planning authority in consultation 
with Thames Water.  Any piling must be undertaken in accordance with the terms of 
the approved piling method statement.

16 No development shall take place, including site clearance or other preparatory work, 
until full details of both hard and soft landscape works (including tree planting) and 
implementation programme (linked to the development schedule) have been 
submitted to an approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority. These works 
shall be carried out as approved. The hard landscaping details shall include, as 
appropriate, and in addition to details of existing features to be retained: proposed 
finished levels or contours; means of enclosure; car parking layouts; other minor 
artefacts and structures, including signs and lighting and functional services above 
and below ground. The details of soft landscape works shall include plans for 
planting or establishment by any means and full written specifications and schedules 
of plants, including species, plant sizes and proposed numbers /densities where 
appropriate. If within a period of five years from the date of the planting or 
establishment of any tree, or shrub or plant, that tree, shrub, or plant or any 
replacement is removed, uprooted or destroyed or dies or becomes seriously 
damaged or defective another tree or shrub, or plant of the same species and size 
as that originally planted shall be planted at the same place, unless the Local 
Planning Authority gives its written consent to any variation.

17 No development shall take place until wheel washing or other cleaning facilities for 
vehicles leaving the site during construction works have been installed in 
accordance with details which shall be submitted to and agreed in writing by the 
Local Planning Authority. The approved installed cleaning facilities shall be used to 
clean vehicles immediately before leaving the site.

18 The parking area shown on the approved plan shall be provided prior to the first 
occupation of the development and shall be retained free of obstruction for the 
parking of residents (staff) and visitors vehicles.

11Page 21



19 The refuse storage facility shown on the approved plans shall be completed prior to 
the first occupation of the development and shall thereafter be retained free of 
obstruction and used for the storage of refuse and recycling only and for no other 
purpose, unless otherwise agreed in writing by the Local Planning Authority.

20 No development shall take place, including any works of demolition, until a 
Construction Method Statement has been submitted to, and approved in writing by, 
the Local Planning Authority. The approved Statement shall be adhered to 
throughout the construction period. The Statement shall provide for:

1. The parking of vehicles of site operatives and visitors
2. Loading and unloading of plant and materials
3. Storage of plant and materials used in constructing the development
4. The erection and maintenance of security hoarding including decorative displays 
and facilities for public viewing, where appropriate
5. Measures to control the emission of dust and dirt during construction, including 
wheel washing.
6. A scheme for recycling/disposing of waste resulting from demolition and 
construction works.

21 The headroom in the internal parking area of the development hereby permitted 
shall not be less than 2.5 metres, which dimensions shall be clear of any 
encroachments such as pipes, trunking and vents.

22 There shall be no obstruction to vehicular traffic crossing the site between the High 
Road and Wesley Hall, Loughton Methodist Church and Vanryne House at any time 
during the construction of the development hereby approved and thereafter.

23 All construction/demolition works and ancillary operations, including vehicle 
movement on site which are audible at the boundary of noise sensitive premises, 
shall only take place between the hours of 07.30 to 18.30 Monday to Friday and 
08.00 to 13.00 hours on Saturday, and at no time during Sundays and Public/Bank 
Holidays unless otherwise agreed in writing by the Local Planning Authority.

123

 

Unauthorised reproduction infringes 
Crown Copyright and may lead to 
prosecution or civil proceedings.

Contains Ordnance Survey Data. © 
Crown Copyright 2013 EFDC License No: 
100018534

Contains Royal Mail Data. © Royal Mail 
Copyright & Database Right 2013

Application Number: EPF/3398/16
Site Name: Woodlands, 152 High Road, 

Chigwell, IG7 5BQ
Scale of Plot: 1/1250

12 Page 22



Report Item No: 4

APPLICATION No: EPF/3398/16

SITE ADDRESS: Woodlands
152 High Road
CHIGWELL
IG7 5BQ

PARISH: Chigwell

WARD: Chigwell Village

DESCRIPTION OF 
PROPOSAL:

Revised Application to Application Numbers EPF/0410/16 and 
EPF/2446/15 for Amended Vehicle Access and Erection of 9 
Apartments. Five apartments in building to replace existing house, 
four apartments in building at position of former tennis courts.

DECISION: Refuse Permission

Click on the link below to view related plans and documents for this case:
http://planpub.eppingforestdc.gov.uk/NIM.websearch/ExternalEntryPoint.aspx?SEARCH_TYPE=1&DOC_CLASS_CODE=PL&FOLDER1_REF=590503

REASON FOR REFUSAL

1 By reason of the cumulative impact of the intensity of residential use proposed on 
the application site together with the more intense residential use at Greenview, 154 
High Road, a recent development of three flats, the proposal would reinforce and 
exacerbate a harmful and unsustainable change in the character of the locality from 
predominantly large detached houses in single family occupation to a mix of flats 
and houses.  Furthermore, the proposal would also serve as an undesirable 
precedent for similarly harmful development in the locality, further eroding its 
distinctive character.  Accordingly, the proposal is contrary to Local Plan and 
Alterations policies CP2(iv), CP3(v), CP7 and DBE11 which are consistent with the 
National Planning Policy Framework.

Way forward:

Members concluded their objections were fundamental and could not offer any way forward for the 
proposal.  They suggested the developer may decide to implement planning permission 
EPF/0410/16 as an alternative to the refused proposal.

123

13Page 23

http://planpub.eppingforestdc.gov.uk/NIM.websearch/ExternalEntryPoint.aspx?SEARCH_TYPE=1&DOC_CLASS_CODE=PL&FOLDER1_REF=590503


 
Report Item No: 5

APPLICATION No: EPF/3407/16

SITE ADDRESS: Woodberrie
Woodbury Hill
Loughton
Essex
IG10 1JB

PARISH: Loughton

WARD: Loughton St Johns

DESCRIPTION OF 
PROPOSAL:

Demolition of existing garage and erection of two storey extension 
with two storey link, single storey rear conservatory extension and 
linked garage together with minor external changes.

DECISION:  Grant Permission (With Conditions)

Click on the link below to view related plans and documents for this case:
http://planpub.eppingforestdc.gov.uk/NIM.websearch/ExternalEntryPoint.aspx?SEARCH_TYPE=1&DOC_CLASS_CODE=PL&FOLDER1_REF=590538

CONDITIONS 

1 The development hereby permitted must be begun not later than the expiration of 
three years beginning with the date of this notice.

2 No development shall have taken place until samples of the types and colours of the 
external finishes have been submitted to and approved by the Local Planning 
Authority in writing prior to the commencement of the development. The 
development shall be implemented in accordance with such approved details. For 
the purposes of this condition, the samples shall only be made available for 
inspection by the Local Planning Authority at the planning application site itself. 

3 No development shall take place until details of surface water disposal have been 
submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority. The 
development shall be implemented in accordance with such agreed details.

4 No development shall take place, including site clearance or other preparatory work, 
until full details of both hard and soft landscape works (including tree planting) and 
implementation programme (linked to the development schedule) have been 
submitted to an approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority. These works 
shall be carried out as approved. The hard landscaping details shall include, as 
appropriate, and in addition to details of existing features to be retained: proposed 
finished levels or contours; means of enclosure; car parking layouts; other minor 
artefacts and structures, including signs and lighting and functional services above 
and below ground. The details of soft landscape works shall include plans for 
planting or establishment by any means and full written specifications and schedules 

14 Page 24

http://planpub.eppingforestdc.gov.uk/NIM.websearch/ExternalEntryPoint.aspx?SEARCH_TYPE=1&DOC_CLASS_CODE=PL&FOLDER1_REF=590538


of plants, including species, plant sizes and proposed numbers /densities where 
appropriate. If within a period of five years from the date of the planting or 
establishment of any tree, or shrub or plant, that tree, shrub, or plant or any 
replacement is removed, uprooted or destroyed or dies or becomes seriously 
damaged or defective another tree or shrub, or plant of the same species and size 
as that originally planted shall be planted at the same place, unless the Local 
Planning Authority gives its written consent to any variation.

5 No development, including works of demolition or site clearance, shall take place 
until a Tree Protection Plan Arboricultural Method Statement and site monitoring 
schedule in accordance with BS:5837:2012 (Trees in relation to design, demolition 
and construction - recommendations) has been submitted to the Local Planning 
Authority and approved in writing. The development shall be carried out only in 
accordance with the approved documents unless the Local Planning Authority gives 
its written consent to any variation.

6 If any tree, shrub or hedge shown to be retained within Hallwood Associates Ltd 
Arboricultural Impact Assessment dated 5th December 2016 (Ref 1660-01-AP111) 
is removed, uprooted or destroyed, or dies, or becomes severely damaged or 
diseased during development activities or within 3 years of the completion of the 
development, another tree, shrub or hedge of the same size and species shall be 
planted within 3 months at the same place, unless the Local Planning Authority 
gives its written consent to any variation. If within a period of five years from the date 
of planting any replacement tree, shrub or hedge is removed, uprooted or destroyed, 
or dies or becomes seriously damaged or defective another tree, shrub or hedge of 
the same species and size as that originally planted shall, within 3 months, be 
planted at the same place.

7 Additional drawings that show details of proposed new windows, doors, eaves, 
verges and junctions with the existing building, by section and elevation at scales 
between 1:20 and 1:1 as appropriate, shall be submitted to and approved by the 
LPA in writing prior to the commencement of any works.

8 A sample panel of brickwork minimum size 600 x 600mm shall be built on site and 
approved by the Local Planning Authority in writing prior to the commencement of 
the development.  The development shall be implemented in accordance with such 
approved details.

9 No development shall take place, including any works of demolition, until a 
Construction Method Statement has been submitted to, and approved in writing by, 
the Local Planning Authority. The approved Statement shall be adhered to 
throughout the construction period. The Statement shall provide for:

1. The parking of vehicles of site operatives and visitors
2. Loading and unloading of plant and materials.
3. Storage of plant and materials used in constructing the development.
4. Measures to control the emission of dust and dirt during construction, including 
wheel washing.
5. A scheme for recycling/disposing of waste resulting from demolition and
construction works.
6. Details of delivery schedules or restrictions in place to ensure no construction 

15Page 25



deliveries take place during school term time between the hours of 8.30-9.30 and 
14.45-15.45 on Mondays to Fridays..

10 All construction/demolition works and ancillary operations, including vehicle 
movement on site which are audible at the boundary of noise sensitive premises, 
shall only take place between the hours of 07.30 to 18.30 Monday to Friday and 
08.00 to 13.00 hours on Saturday, and at no time during Sundays and Public/Bank 
Holidays unless otherwise agreed in writing by the Local Planning Authority.

123

16 Page 26



Report Item No: 6

APPLICATION No: EPF/3363/16

SITE ADDRESS: Greengates
24 Albion Hill
Loughton
Essex
IG10 4RD

PARISH: Loughton

WARD: Loughton Forest

DESCRIPTION OF 
PROPOSAL:

Variation of condition 3 'Plan nos' of planning permission 
EPF/1084/13 (Demolition of existing dwelling and erection of new 
two storey (three to the rear) single family dwelling) to retain as 
built alterations including alterations to windows, alterations to rear 
roof design, replacement of glass to metal railings on terrace, 
awning above garage and shed within rear garden.

DECISION: Grant Permission (With Conditions)

Click on the link below to view related plans and documents for this case:
http://planpub.eppingforestdc.gov.uk/NIM.websearch/ExternalEntryPoint.aspx?SEARCH_TYPE=1&DOC_CLASS_CODE=PL&FOLDER1_REF=590417

CONDITIONS 

1 The development hereby permitted must be begun not later than the expiration of 
three years beginning with the date of this notice.

2 The development shall be implemented in accordance with the approved materials 
details submitted under reference EPF/0279/15.

3 The development hereby permitted will be completed strictly in accordance with the 
approved drawings nos: 208-DWG-300-PL, 208-DWG-301-PL, 208-DWG-302-PL, 
208-DWG-320, 208-DWG-320-PL, 208-DWG-321-PL, 208-DWG-251-BB, 208-
DWG-000-PL, 208-DWG-001-PL, 208-DWG-002-PL, 208-DWG-003-PL, 208-DWG-
004-PL, 208-DWG-010-PL, 208-DWG-011-PL, 208-DWG-110-PL, 208-DWG-111-
PL, 208-DWG-100 -xx Rev C, 208-DWG-100-01 Rev F, 208-DWG-100-01C Rev F, 
208-DWG-102-00 Rev F, 208-DWG-104-Rf Rev F, 208-DWG-105-At Rev F, 208-
DWG-120 Rev F, 208-DWG-123 Rev F, 208-DWG-124 Rev F, 208-DWG-126 Rev F

4 Notwithstanding the provision of the Town and Country Planning General Permitted 
Development Order 1995 (or of any equivalent provisions of any Statutory 
Instrument revoking or re-enacting the Order) no windows other than any shown on 
the approved plan shall be formed at any time in the flank walls of the development 
hereby permitted without the prior written approval of the Local Planning Authority.

17Page 27

http://planpub.eppingforestdc.gov.uk/NIM.websearch/ExternalEntryPoint.aspx?SEARCH_TYPE=1&DOC_CLASS_CODE=PL&FOLDER1_REF=590417


5 The development shall be implemented in accordance with the details submitted 
within the Construction Method Statement submitted and approved under reference 
EPF/0480/14. The approved Statement shall be adhered to throughout the 
construction period. 

6 The development shall be carried out in accordance with the approved Tree 
Protection documents, approved under reference EPF/1674/13 unless the Local 
Planning Authority gives its written consent to any variation.

7 If any tree, shrub or hedge shown to be retained in accordance with the approved 
plans and particulars is removed, uprooted or destroyed, or dies, or becomes 
severely damaged or diseased within 3 years of the completion of the development, 
another tree, shrub or hedge of the same size and species shall be planted within 3 
months at the same place, unless the Local Planning Authority gives its written 
consent to any variation. If within a period of five years from the date of planting any 
replacement tree, shrub or hedge is removed, uprooted or destroyed, or dies or 
becomes seriously damaged or defective another tree, shrub or hedge of the same 
species and size as that originally planted shall, within 3 months, be planted at the 
same place.

8 All material excavated from the below ground works hereby approved shall be 
removed from the site unless otherwise agreed in writing by the Local Planning 
Authority.

9 The development shall be implemented in accordance with the details submitted 
within the Flood Risk Assessment approved under reference EPF/1674/13. The 
approved measures shall be carried out prior to the substantial completion of the 
development and shall be adequately maintained in accordance with the 
management and maintenance plan.

10 All construction/demolition works and ancillary operations, including vehicle 
movement on site which are audible at the boundary of noise sensitive premises, 
shall only take place between the hours of 08.00 to 18.30 Monday to Friday and 
08.00 to 13.00 hours on Saturday, and at no time during Sundays and Public/Bank 
Holidays unless otherwise agreed in writing by the Local Planning Authority.

11 The development shall be implemented in accordance with the hard and soft 
landscaping proposals submitted and approved under reference EPF/1674/13. If 
within a period of five years from the date of the planting or establishment of any 
tree, or shrub or plant, that tree, shrub, or plant or any replacement is removed, 
uprooted or destroyed or dies or becomes seriously damaged or defective another 
tree or shrub, or plant of the same species and size as that originally planted shall 
be planted at the same place, unless the Local Planning Authority gives its written 
consent to any variation.

12 The development shall be carried out in accordance with the submitted and 
approved site level details submitted under reference EPF/1674/13.

18 Page 28



13 Notwithstanding the provisions of the Town and Country Planning General Permitted 
Development Order 1995 as amended (or any other order revoking, further 
amending or re-enacting that order) no development generally permitted by virtue of 
Part 1, Classes A, B, C, D, E and installation of microgeneration equipment 
generally permitted by Part 40 Classes A, B and H shall be undertaken without the 
prior written permission of the Local Planning Authority.

14 Bricks and windows salvaged from the existing basement floor side wall shall be 
reused in the new side wall unless otherwise agreed in writing with the Local 
Planning Authority.

15 The proposed brickwork at basement level shall be in Flemish bond with ruddled 
mortar joints to match the existing brickwork unless otherwise agreed in writing with 
the Local Planning Authority.

16 The development shall be implemented in accordance with the submitted and 
approved surface water drainage details approved under reference EPF/1674/13.

17 The proposal shall be carried out in accordance with the Mitigation Measures and 
Enhancement Measures as outlined within the Ecological Scoping Survey Report 
dated 15th January 2013 unless otherwise agreed in writing with the Local Planning 
Authority.

18 The bat mitigation strategy shall be carried out in accordance with the details 
approved under reference EPF/1674/13.  

19 Within 3 months of the date of this permission, the rear facing door to the utility 
room/garage shall be entirely fitted with obscured glass/film and shall be 
permanently retained in that condition.

20 Notwithstanding the provisions of condition 11 of this permission, landscaping on the 
southern site boundary with Thurlestone shall be reinforced with non-deciduous 
trees and shrubs of a type, size and number previously agreed in writing by the 
Local Planning Authority.  Such details shall be submitted to the Local Planning 
Authority for its approval within 2 months of the date of this decision and planted 
within the first planting season following their approval. If within a period of five years 
from the date of the planting or establishment of any tree, or shrub, that tree, shrub, 
or any replacement is removed, uprooted or destroyed or dies or becomes seriously 
damaged or defective another tree or shrub of the same species and size as that 
originally planted shall be planted at the same place, unless the Local Planning 
Authority gives its written consent to any variation.

 
 

123

19Page 29



Report Item No: 7

APPLICATION No: EPF/1761/16

SITE ADDRESS: 1 Cranleigh Gardens 
Loughton
Essex
IG10 3DD

PARISH: Loughton

WARD: Loughton Roding

DESCRIPTION OF 
PROPOSAL:

Two storey extension to side and rear of existing dwelling on 
ground and first floors, with associated amendments to existing 
roof and facades, resulting in a new ensuite bathroom, study and 
additional bedroom.

DECISION: Grant Permission (With Conditions)

Click on the link below to view related plans and documents for this case:
http://planpub.eppingforestdc.gov.uk/NIM.websearch/ExternalEntryPoint.aspx?SEARCH_TYPE=1&DOC_CLASS_CODE=PL&FOLDER1_REF=585577

CONDITIONS 

1 The development hereby permitted must be begun not later than the expiration of 
three years beginning with the date of this notice.

2 Prior to first occupation of the development hereby approved, the proposed window 
opening in the north-western flank elevation, to bedroom 3, shall be entirely fitted 
with obscured glass and have fixed frames to a height of 1.7 metres above the floor 
of the room in which the window is installed and shall be permanently retained in 
that condition.

3 Materials to be used for the external finishes of the proposed development shall 
match those of the existing house, unless otherwise agreed in writing by the Local 
Planning Authority.

4 Access to the flat roof over the extension hereby approved shall be for maintenance 
or emergency purposes only and the flat roof shall not be used as a seating area, 
roof garden, terrace, patio or similar amenity area.

5 All construction/demolition works and ancillary operations, including vehicle 
movement on site which are audible at the boundary of noise sensitive premises, 
shall only take place between the hours of 07.30 to 18.30 Monday to Friday and 
08.00 to 13.00 hours on Saturday, and at no time during Sundays and Public/Bank 
Holidays unless otherwise agreed in writing by the Local Planning Authority.

20 Page 30

http://planpub.eppingforestdc.gov.uk/NIM.websearch/ExternalEntryPoint.aspx?SEARCH_TYPE=1&DOC_CLASS_CODE=PL&FOLDER1_REF=585577


Report Item No: 8

APPLICATION No: EPF/3090/16

SITE ADDRESS: 2 Alderton Hall Lane
Loughton
Essex
IG10 3HN

PARISH: Loughton

WARD: Loughton Alderton

DESCRIPTION OF 
PROPOSAL:

Part single, part two storey rear extension. Two storey side 
extension with a truncated ridge. New front porch.  Alterations to 
the pitched roof of the original house to create a crown roof.

DECISION: Refuse Permission

Click on the link below to view related plans and documents for this case:
http://planpub.eppingforestdc.gov.uk/NIM.websearch/ExternalEntryPoint.aspx?SEARCH_TYPE=1&DOC_CLASS_CODE=PL&FOLDER1_REF=589575

REASONS FOR REFUSAL

1 By reason of the cumulative rearward projection of the existing house and the 
proposed extension beyond the rear elevation of 71A Alderton Hill at first floor and 
roof level, the proposal would appear excessively overbearing when seen from the 
rear elevation and adjacent rear garden of 71A Alderton Hill, resulting in significant 
harm to outlook from that property.  As a consequence, the proposal would cause 
excessive harm to the living conditions of 71A Alderton Hill, contrary to Local Plan 
and Alterations policy DBE9, which is consistent with the National Planning Policy 
Framework.

2 By reason of its bulk, siting and contrasting crown roof design, the proposal would 
appear in sharp contrast to the adjacent houses at 71A Alderton Hill and 4 Alderton 
Hall Lane.  Due to the staggered relationship of those three houses the contrast 
would be highly visible when seen from the south along Alderton Hall Lane.  The 
degree of contrast and its prominence would appear incongruous, disrupting the 
harmonious relationship of the three houses and the visual integrity of the group.  As 
a consequence, the proposal would fail to complement the streetscene, causing 
significant harm to the character and appearance of the locality contrary to Local 
Plan and Alterations policy DBE10, which is consistent with the National Planning 
Policy Framework.

123

21Page 31

http://planpub.eppingforestdc.gov.uk/NIM.websearch/ExternalEntryPoint.aspx?SEARCH_TYPE=1&DOC_CLASS_CODE=PL&FOLDER1_REF=589575


Way forward:

Members considered a significant alteration to the size, siting and design of the first floor 
components of the proposal together with sensitive refinement of the ground floor would be likely 
to overcome the Council’s objections.  The Applicant is encouraged to seek detailed pre-
application advice from Officers prior to making an application for any revised proposal.

Members detailed assessment of application EPF/3090/16

Members were concerned about the consequence of the proposal for the living conditions of 71A 
Alderton Hill and for the character and appearance of the locality.

In relation to the living conditions of 71A Alderton Hill, Members were aware that the existing 
house projects approximately 3m beyond the rear elevation of 71A.  The addition of a further 2m at 
upper level would result in a 5m deep expanse of high wall set approximately 1m from the site 
boundary.  Notwithstanding the fact that 71A Alderton Hill is on somewhat higher ground, has a 
relatively wide rear garden and that a distance of approximately 5m separates the flank walls of 2 
Alderton Hall Lane with 71A Alderton Hill, Members concluded the relationship of the proposed 
enlarged flank of 2 Alderton Hall Lane to the rear elevation and rear garden of 71A Alderton Hill 
would be excessively overbearing when seen from 71A.  Its depth at upper level, together with its 
height above the garden level of 71A would be so great that the enlarged flank elevation would 
appear over-dominant and oppressive.  That overbearing impact was found to be likely to 
significantly detract from outlook from the rear of 71A and the adjacent garden area such that the 
ability of the occupants to enjoy reasonable residential amenity would be severely restricted.  
Members concluded that impact would amount to excessive harm to the living conditions of 71A 
Alderton Hill.

In relation to the consequence for the character and appearance of the locality, Members were 
aware the group of three houses comprising of 71A Alderton Hill and 2 and 4 Alderton Hall Lane 
are of very similar scale and roof form, with uniform gaps between the flank walls at upper level.  
They were also aware the site and its relationship to the neighbouring two houses, particularly 4 
Alderton Hall Lane, is highly visible from the south along Alderton Hall Lane.  Members found the 
crown roof design together with the siting and design of the upper level of the proposed side 
extension would have a bulky and incongruous appearance in relation to the neighbouring two 
houses.  They concluded the incongruity would disrupt the harmonious relationship of the three 
houses and the visual integrity of the group.  They further concluded that, as a consequence, the 
proposal would fail to complement the streetscene, causing significant harm to the character and 
appearance of the locality.

Setting in the first floor part of the rear extension a minimum of 2m and redesigning its roof to 
better complement the design of the existing roof together with omitting the first floor side 
extension is likely to address Members concerns, but any amendment should ideally be discussed 
with Officers prior to submission as part of a planning application.  While not a reason for refusal, 
Members also expected any revised proposal to ensure the roof of the single-storey part of the 
extension could be maintained from the application site and demonstrably would not result in 
eaves or gutters overhanging the site boundary.

22 Page 32



Report Item No: 9

APPLICATION No: EPF/3173/16

SITE ADDRESS: 1 Albion Park
Loughton
Essex
IG10 4RB

PARISH: Loughton

WARD: Loughton Forest

DESCRIPTION OF 
PROPOSAL:

Erection of part one and part two storey side extension to form 
annexe to existing house.

DECISION: Grant Permission (With Conditions)

Click on the link below to view related plans and documents for this case:
http://planpub.eppingforestdc.gov.uk/NIM.websearch/ExternalEntryPoint.aspx?SEARCH_TYPE=1&DOC_CLASS_CODE=PL&FOLDER1_REF=589776

CONDITIONS 

1 The development hereby permitted must be begun not later than the expiration of 
three years beginning with the date of this notice.

2 Materials to be used for the external finishes of the proposed development shall 
match those of the existing building, unless otherwise agreed in writing by the Local 
Planning Authority.

3 The proposed part one and part two storey extension hereby approved shall only be 
used for domestic purposes in connection with the existing dwelling on the site. It 
shall not be used as a separate dwelling or dwellings.

4 The additional parking area, and second vehicular access into the front of the 
property, as shown on the 1/500 plan entitled 'Proposed Driveway Layout' shall be 
constructed and available for use before the extension hereby approved is occupied.

5 All construction/demolition works and ancillary operations, including vehicle 
movement on site which are audible at the boundary of noise sensitive premises, 
shall only take place between the hours of 07.30 to 18.30 Monday to Friday and 
08.00 to 13.00 hours on Saturday, and at no time during Sundays and Public/Bank 
Holidays unless otherwise agreed in writing by the Local Planning Authority.

123

23Page 33

http://planpub.eppingforestdc.gov.uk/NIM.websearch/ExternalEntryPoint.aspx?SEARCH_TYPE=1&DOC_CLASS_CODE=PL&FOLDER1_REF=589776


3
Report Item No: 10

APPLICATION No: EPF/3415/16

SITE ADDRESS: 12 Waikato Lodge
Russell Road
Buckhurst Hill
Essex
IG9 5QH

PARISH: Buckhurst Hill

WARD: Buckhurst Hill West

DESCRIPTION OF 
PROPOSAL:

Loft conversion with rear dormer window to provide additional 
accommodation for first floor flat. (Similar proposal to lapsed 
consent EPF/1182/05.)

DECISION: Grant Permission (With Conditions)

Click on the link below to view related plans and documents for this case:
http://planpub.eppingforestdc.gov.uk/NIM.websearch/ExternalEntryPoint.aspx?SEARCH_TYPE=1&DOC_CLASS_CODE=PL&FOLDER1_REF=590557

CONDITIONS 

1 The development hereby permitted must be begun not later than the expiration of 
three years beginning with the date of this notice.

2 Materials to be used for the external finishes of the proposed development shall 
match those of the existing building, unless otherwise agreed in writing by the Local 
Planning Authority.

3 All construction/demolition works and ancillary operations, including vehicle 
movement on site which are audible at the boundary of noise sensitive premises, 
shall only take place between the hours of 07.30 to 18.30 Monday to Friday and 
08.00 to 13.00 hours on Saturday, and at no time during Sundays and Public/Bank 
Holidays unless otherwise agreed in writing by the Local Planning Authority.

4 The three lower sections of the windows to be installed in the rear dormer hereby 
approved shall be fitted with glazing that is obscured and fixed shut.

24 Page 34

http://planpub.eppingforestdc.gov.uk/NIM.websearch/ExternalEntryPoint.aspx?SEARCH_TYPE=1&DOC_CLASS_CODE=PL&FOLDER1_REF=590557


Report Item No: 11

APPLICATION No: EPF/0187/17

SITE ADDRESS: 7 Colebrook Lane
Loughton
Essex
IG10 2HQ

PARISH: Loughton

WARD: Loughton Fairmead

DESCRIPTION OF 
PROPOSAL:

Part retrospective application for two storey side extension, loft 
conversion, including rear dormer, porch and single storey rear 
extension (revised application to include alterations to dormer 
following refusal EPF/0181/16).   

DECISION: Refuse Permission

Click on the link below to view related plans and documents for this case:
http://planpub.eppingforestdc.gov.uk/NIM.websearch/ExternalEntryPoint.aspx?SEARCH_TYPE=1&DOC_CLASS_CODE=PL&FOLDER1_REF=591136

REASONS FOR REFUSAL

1 By reason of its disproportionate width in relation to the overall width of the roof, the 
proposed rear dormer window would fail to complement the appearance of the 
house and consequently would cause significant harm to the character and 
appearance of the locality contrary to Local Plan and Alterations policy DBE10, 
which is consistent with the National Planning Policy Framework.

Way forward:

Members considered a substantially reduced width dormer window that better respected the 
proportions of the main roof of the house would overcome their objections.

Members detailed assessment of application EPF/0187/17

Having regard to the Planning Inspectors decision in appeal ref APP/J1535/D/16/3151920 
Members considerations were focused on the design merits of the proposed dormer window.  
Members were aware of the need to ensure any amendments to the dormer are proportionate to 
the harm caused by it.  They were clear that the harm to the appearance of the house and the 
character and appearance of the locality caused by the bulk, siting and design of the existing 
dormer is very significant, a position consistent with the Inspectors decision.  However, they did 
not agree that setting in the dormer some 600mm from the side elevation and creating a traditional 
gable end was sufficient to remedy the harm caused.  Members found the width of the dormer as 
proposed to be excessive and were aware that it would result in the flanks of the dormer being set 
unequal distances from each end of the roof.  They concluded the relationship of the proposed 

25Page 35

http://planpub.eppingforestdc.gov.uk/NIM.websearch/ExternalEntryPoint.aspx?SEARCH_TYPE=1&DOC_CLASS_CODE=PL&FOLDER1_REF=591136


dormer to the roof, by reason of its disproportionate width, exacerbated by the unequal relationship 
to the ends of the roof, would fail to complement the appearance of the house.  Since the flank 
elevation of the house and the dormer is visually prominent in views along Colebrook Lane and 
from the rear of neighbouring dwellings Members also concluded that the failure to complement 
the appearance of the house would cause significant harm to the character and appearance of the 
locality.

Setting in the dormer significantly further from the flank elevation of the house and setting it away 
from the boundary with the attached neighbour would be likely to achieve a better relationship to 
the roof and lower levels of the house.  That would be likely to address Members concerns, 
however, any amendment should ideally be discussed with Officers prior to submission as part of 
a planning application.

26 Page 36



AREA PLANS SUB-COMMITTEE SOUTH

Date 26 April 2017

INDEX OF PLANNING APPLICATIONS/ENFORCEMENT CASES

ITEM REFERENCE SITE LOCATION
OFFICER 
RECOMMENDATION

PAGE

1. EPF/0338/17
51 High Road, Loughton, Essex, 

IG10 4JE Grant Permission 40

2. EPF/0385/17
160 Manor Road, Chigwell, 

Essex, IG7 5PX Grant Permission 50

3. EPF/0540/17
51 Manor Road, Chigwell, Essex, 

IG7 5PL Grant Permission 58

Page 37

Agenda Item 7



Page 38



Page 39



123

 

29.9m

36.9m

39.0m

33.2m

Court
Albion Park

21

14

14

10

Sub Sta

11

El

12

9

2

6a

2

8

13

1

7

81

17

15

19
18

24

16

23 22

20

2

3

5.5

2a

7

1

1 2 4

29

17
1

1

19

9

2

32

47

3 6

12 to 15

The
Willows

7 10

11

5 8 9

67

26

1

53

3

59

Swiss 
Cottage

Place

Newnham

House

1 to 18

41

8

11

15

9

Oaklands School

4

NEW
NHAM C

LO
SE

CRESCENT VIEW

ALBION HILL

HIGH ROAD

Playing Field

MS

Pond

EFDC

EFDC

Epping Forest District Council
Agenda Item Number 1

Unauthorised reproduction infringes 
Crown Copyright and may lead to 
prosecution or civil proceedings.

Contains Ordnance Survey Data. © 
Crown Copyright 2013 EFDC License No: 
100018534

Contains Royal Mail Data. © Royal Mail 
Copyright & Database Right 2013

Application Number: EPF/0338/17
Site Name: 51 High Road, Loughton, IG10 4JE

Scale of Plot: 1/1250

Page 40



Report Item No: 1

APPLICATION No: EPF/0338/17

SITE ADDRESS: 51 High Road
Loughton
Essex
IG10 4JE

PARISH: Loughton

WARD: Loughton Forest

APPLICANT: Spring Grove Ltd

DESCRIPTION OF 
PROPOSAL:

The demolition of the detached house and erection of 6 no. 2 bed 
flats with 6 parking spaces.

RECOMMENDED 
DECISION:

Grant Permission (With Conditions)

Click on the link below to view related plans and documents for this case:
http://planpub.eppingforestdc.gov.uk/NIM.websearch/ExternalEntryPoint.aspx?SEARCH_TYPE=1&DOC_CLASS_CODE=PL&FOLDER1_REF=591673

CONDITIONS 

1 The development hereby permitted must be begun not later than the expiration of 
three years beginning with the date of this notice.

2 The development hereby permitted will be completed strictly in accordance with the 
approved drawings nos: 
Site location plan
1834/02
Plans and Elevations - Existing
1834/01
SK-17-10
Street scene drawings
SK-17-01
Support information annex H
Flood Risk Assessment Rev 1 4 August 2015 by Crosby Energy
Tree Survey, Aboricultural Impact Assessment, Tree Protection Plan & Heads          
of Terms for the Arboricultural Method Statement, Job no: MJC-15-0221
Supporting Statement dated January 2017

3 No construction works above ground level shall take place until documentary and 
photographic details of the types and colours of the external finishes have been 
submitted to and approved by the Local Planning Authority, in writing. The 
development shall be implemented in accordance with such approved details.

Page 41

http://planpub.eppingforestdc.gov.uk/NIM.websearch/ExternalEntryPoint.aspx?SEARCH_TYPE=1&DOC_CLASS_CODE=PL&FOLDER1_REF=591673


4 Prior to first occupation of the development hereby approved, the proposed window 
openings in the eastern flank elevation shall be entirely fitted with obscured glass 
and have fixed frames to a height of 1.7 metres above the floor of the room in which 
the window is installed and shall be permanently retained in that condition.

5 No development shall take place until details of the landscaping of the site, including 
retention of trees and other natural features and including the proposed times of 
proposed planting (linked to the development schedule), have been submitted to 
and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority. The approved landscaping 
shall be carried out in accordance with the approved details and at those times.

6 Gates shall not be erected on the vehicular access to the site without the prior 
written approval of the Local Planning Authority.

7 The parking area shown on the approved plan shall be provided prior to the first 
occupation of the development and shall be retained free of obstruction for the 
parking of residents and visitors vehicles.

8 No development shall take place until details of levels have been submitted to and 
approved by the Local Planning Authority showing cross-sections and elevations of 
the levels of the site prior to development and the proposed levels of all ground floor 
slabs of buildings, roadways and accessways and landscaped areas. The 
development shall be carried out in accordance with those approved details.

9 All material excavated from the below ground works hereby approved shall be 
removed from the site unless otherwise agreed in writing by the Local Planning 
Authority.

10 The refuse storage facility and cycle store shown on the approved plans shall be 
completed prior to the first occupation of the development and shall thereafter be 
retained free of obstruction and used for the storage of refuse and recycling or the 
storage of cycles only and for no other purpose, unless otherwise agreed in writing 
by the Local Planning Authority.

11 All construction/demolition works and ancillary operations, including vehicle 
movement on site which are audible at the boundary of noise sensitive premises, 
shall only take place between the hours of 07.30 to 18.30 Monday to Friday and 
08.00 to 13.00 hours on Saturday, and at no time during Sundays and Public/Bank 
Holidays unless otherwise agreed in writing by the Local Planning Authority.

12 The development shall be carried out in accordance with the flood risk assessment 
(Flood Risk Assessment Rev 1 - Crosby Energy & Sustainability, 4 August 2015) 
and drainage strategy submitted with the application unless otherwise agreed in 
writing with the local planning authority.

Page 42



13 Prior to first occupation of the development the existing redundant dropped kerbs 
shall be fully reinstated to full height kerbing and footway.

14 Prior to first occupation of the development, the Developer shall be responsible for 
the provision and implementation of a Residential Travel Information Pack for 
sustainable transport, approved by Essex County Council, to include six one day 
travel vouchers for use with the relevant local public transport operator.

15 There shall be no discharge of surface water onto the Highway.

16 Prior to first occupation of the development the access, vehicle parking and turning 
area as indicated on the approved plans shall be provided, hard surfaced, sealed 
and marked out. The access, parking and turning area shall be retained in perpetuity 
for their intended purpose.

This application is before this Committee for the following reasons:

1. The recommendation is for approval and more than two expressions of objection have been 
made (Pursuant to The Constitution, Part Three:  Planning Directorate – Delegation of Council 
function, Schedule 1, Appendix A. (f) ))

2. It is an application for residential development consisting of 5 dwellings or more (unless 
approval of reserved matters only) and is recommended for approval (Pursuant to The 
Constitution, Part Three: Scheme of Delegation, Appendix 3)

3. The recommendation is for approval contrary to an objection from a local council which is 
material to the planning merits of the proposal (Pursuant to The Constitution, Part Three: 
Scheme of Delegation, Appendix 3)

Description of Site:

The site is that of a house and its curtilage on the corner of High Road with Spring Grove. The 
house on the site has five bedrooms and has two storeys and loft accommodation, of two of the 
bedrooms, with gable end and dormer windows.

The site is a maximum of 44m in length, north/south, by some 15m wide at a mid point along the 
site.

The site is within part of the built up area of Loughton. The property is not listed or locally listed 
and is not in a conservation area.

Ground levels of surrounding land rise from south to north. There is a gentle slope to the 
surrounding land falling from west to east. The site itself rises in level from south to north although 
the ground at the northern end of the site is lower than that of the adjoining footway of High Road; 
the ground to the northernmost end of the site is effectively terraced into a slope.

Page 43



Description of Proposal: 

The demolition of the detached house and erection of 6 no. 2 bed flats with 6 parking spaces.

The flats would be accommodated within a building with three storeys.  The footprint of the 
building would be a maximum of 21m long, running north/south, by a maximum of 12.5m deep. 
The building would have a crown roof and, at the lowest adjacent land (by the rear elevations), a 
maximum height of 11m. The eaves height would generally be in the region of 7m though the form 
of the roof design and sloping ground mean that the height to different elements of the eaves 
would vary.  The proposed building would be of an almost “Tudor-bethan” style with parts of the 
building appearing to have exposed beams with rendered panels between, fan lights in upper parts 
of windows being sub-divided by glazing bars, finials to gables and sloping roof forms broken up 
into a number of elements.

Each floor would accommodate two flats. The flats on the upper floors would have balconies to the 
northern and southern elevations.  The parking area, of 6 car parking spaces, would be accessed 
off Spring Grove. 

Relevant History:

EPF/1627/15 Single storey rear infill extension to the lower ground level following demolition of 
existing run-down rear outbuilding. – Granted 28/08/2015

EPF/1973/15 Demolition of existing house and construction of eight residential flats with 
associated car parking spaces, amenity space and refuse collection area. – 
Refused 02/12/2015 on the basis of harm to the character and appearance of the 
locality, unjustified loss of a non-designated heritage asset, harm to living conditions 
of neighbours and inadequate provision of off-street parking spaces.  

A subsequent appeal was dismissed on 09/06/2016 on the basis of harm to the 
character and appearance of the locality, harm to the living conditions of no.53 High 
Road alone and lack of justification for the loss of a non-designated heritage asset.  
The Council’s objection to the limited provision of off-street parking was not upheld. 

EPF/0439/16 Two-storey rear extension and rearward extension of roof. Conversion to two 2-bed 
and one 1-bed flats. – Granted 08/06/2016

EPF/1967/16 A new 2.5 storey, 3 bedroom dwelling to the rear of 51 High Road, Loughton, 
Essex, IG10 4JE, with associated parking and amenity. – Refused 22/09/2016

Policies Applied:

Adopted Local Plan:

CP1                 Achieving Sustainable Development Objectives
CP2 Quality of Rural and Built Environment
CP3                 New Development
CP6                 Achieving Sustainable Urban Development Patterns
CP7                 Urban Form and Quality
H2A                 Previously Developed Land
H4A                 Dwelling Mix
DBE1               Design of New Buildings
DBE2               Effect on Neighbouring Properties
DBE3               Design in Urban Areas

Page 44



DBE6               Car parking in new development
DBE8               Private Amenity Space
DBE9  Loss of Amenity
LL11                Landscaping Schemes
LL12                Street Trees
ST1                  Location of Development
ST2                  Accessibility of development
ST4                  Road Safety
ST6                  Vehicle Parking

Essex County Council Revised Parking Standards 2009 SPG

NPPF:

The National Planning Policy Framework (NPPF) has been adopted as national policy since March 
2012. Paragraph 215 states that due weight should be given to relevant policies in existing plans 
according to their degree of consistency with the framework.  The above policies are broadly 
consistent with the NPPF and should therefore be given appropriate weight.

Draft Local Plan:

At the current time, only limited weight can be applied to the Draft Local Plan, however the Draft 
Plan and evidence base should be considered as a material consideration in planning decisions. 
The relevant policies in this case are as follows:

SP1                 Presumption in Favour of Sustainable Development
SP2                 Spatial Development Strategy 2011-2033
DM2                Landscape Character and Ancient Landscapes
DM7                Heritage Assets
DM9 High Quality Design
DM10              Housing Design and Quality
DM11              Waste recycling facilities on new developments

Consultation Carried Out and Summary of Representations Received  

Number of neighbours consulted:  68
Site notice posted:  Yes

Responses received:

The occupants of 10 neighbouring properties have raised objection to the proposal:

53 HIGH ROAD – object – out of character, inadequate landscaping, would appear overbearing 
and crowded in relation to streetscene, adverse impact to the heritage character of adjoining 
Victorian character cottages, loss of light, too greater density, overdevelopment, loss of privacy, 
overbearing, loss of on-street parking, would cause disturbance, inadequate parking.

55 HIGH ROAD – object – loss of existing property would be detrimental, intrusive, lack of parking, 
loss of light, loss of privacy, would add to problem of high demand for on-street parking.

2 SPRING GROVE – object – out of character, detrimental to street scene, would not respect 
building lines and appear oppressive, overdevelopment, loss of amenity to neighbouring 
properties, overbearing and oppressive, overshadowing, potential noise and disturbance, concern 
at stability of ground, loss of amenity due to loss of on-street parking.

Page 45



4 SPRING GROVE – object – out of character, detrimental to street scene, would not respect 
building lines and appear oppressive, overdevelopment, loss of amenity to neighbouring 
properties, overbearing and oppressive, overshadowing, potential noise and disturbance, concern 
at stability of ground, loss of amenity due to loss of on-street parking.

6 SPRING GROVE – object – loss of light and view, loss of privacy, would increase problems of 
traffic movements and parking, could impact on underground springs, overdevelopment.

33  SPRING GROVE – object - overdevelopment , would add to traffic generated by the school  
which is directly opposite, existing excess parking demand and congestion,  would create 
additional demand for parking to exacerbate this dangerous situation.

35 SPRING GROVE – object - over development, out of character for an upmarket residential 
road, will negatively impact the perception of the road and the value of properties in it, height will 
dominate the surrounding area, previous planning application for small flats was quite acceptable.  

50 SPRING GROVE – object – would add to a parking problem associated with a local school, 
would add to a traffic problem, no more than three flats would be appropriate for site.

60 SPRING GROVE – object – would add to parking congestion which is already a problem due to 
the school runs/parking.

12 ALBION PARK – object - existing dwelling should be retained as it is an attractive Arts and 
Crafts style property loss of which would be detrimental to the character and appearance of the 
local area, proposed development would detract from the living conditions and amenity of people 
in adjoining properties.

LOUGHTON RESIDENTS ASSOCATION – object – existing building is a non-designated heritage 
asset, overdevelopment, out of keeping, façade appears muddled and incoherent, flats appear to 
be cramped, lack of adequate amenity space, parking provision totally inappropriate, any approval 
should ensure landscaping, restricted hours of work and wheel washing.

LOUGHTON TOWN COUNCIL:  OBJECTION. The proposed 6-flat development on this prominent 
corner plot was considered an overdevelopment of the site, out of keeping with the streetscene 
and fails to complement the character of the area. Members also commented the design would not 
maintain the quality of the built environment.

Furthermore, the Committee was concerned by the inadequate parking provision, as only six 
spaces were proposed for the scheme. The site was also opposite Oaklands School and school 
parking / traffic caused daily congestion.

However, if the District Council was minded to grant this application, the Committee requested that 
a condition for wheel washing be imposed to reduce mud exiting the site onto Spring Grove during 
the construction period, as a steep hill lead up to the T-junction with the High Road and highway 
safety could be impaired.

Main Issues and Considerations:

The main issues are considered to be the appearance and visual impact of the building; impacts to 
neighbours; and, future residential amenity of the occupiers of the proposed flats. Parking 
provision is also considered below.

The application site is in the urban area of Loughton. The proposals result in the demolition of the 
existing building which does not have any heritage designations but is still considered a non-
designated heritage asset under paragraph 135 of the NPPF as it is a large, attractive late 

Page 46



Victorian/early Edwardian Arts and Crafts style property on a prominent corner plot. The loss of a 
non-designated heritage asset was considered by the Inspector in relation to a previous proposal. 
The Inspector had regard to a view that a loss of the dwelling could be justified if the building that 
replaces it would be of a high standard of design. The appearance of the proposed building is 
discussed below.

Appearance of the proposed building

To the south of the application site and on the opposite side of Spring Grove, to the west, 
development is characterised by established semi-detached houses. The surrounding 
development on High Road near the site is more mixed in character. However, the site is in a 
corner position where a change in scale would appear appropriate.  The scale of this proposal is 
considered to relate well to the site and its context.

The style of the building is traditional and echoes the style of the existing house on the site. In 
terms of its scale it would relate well to the terrace of houses to the east. Although the proposed 
building would consist of three storeys and roof form whereas the terrace is of two storeys plus 
roof form, the proposed building would be set at a lower level such that it would appear not 
significantly taller than the terrace facing High Road. The parking area would serve to form a visual 
break between the pairs of semi-detached houses to the southeast and the proposed building.

The elevations of the proposed building would be broken up by the use of bays and other 
indentations to the footprint of the building. The use of three finishes of external materials: 
rendered panels, brickwork and hanging tiles; would emphasise the sense of variation to the 
component parts of the building. Officers are of the opinion that the crown roof would appear 
convincing as a hipped roof. This would be important in views from the southern end of Spring 
Grove, especially when the southern elevation and the western elevation were seen together, and 
due to lower ground forming the vantage point in these positions; it is considered that the crown 
roof would have a good appearance. 

The space for landscaping within the proposal is somewhat restricted due to its siting and footprint.  
Nonetheless, landscaping, including tree planting and a hedge to High Road and most of Spring 
Grove is indicated on the site layout plan.  Moreover, a detailed landscaping scheme could be 
secured by condition.  Such a condition is necessary and reasonable to ensure the proposal would 
appear appropriate in its context.

In conclusion, with regard to appearance, it is considered that the proposal would maintain and 
conserve the quality of the built environment as required by Policy CP2.

Impacts to neighbours

The built form of the proposed building would be close to the eastern boundary of the site. This 
boundary is a side boundary of 53 High Road. At the area immediately behind the house the 
proposed building would be a metre off the common boundary and be three storeys in height, a 
height to the eaves of approximately 5.5m above the adjacent garden level of 53. The footprint of 
the current proposal, at this area, is similar to that for the proposal for eight flats (EPF/1973/15). 
With that previous proposal the Inspector commented that the three-storey element of the building 
proposed for eight flats would have little additional impact than that of the existing house on the 
neighbouring property, no. 53, in terms of outlook. The Inspector was, however, concerned that 
the two-storey element of the building, extending to the south of the site, would result in significant 
enclosing and overbearing effect when seen from the narrow rear garden of no. 53. The current 
proposal would project far less to the south, not more than approximately 5m at upper level, while 
the rearward projection would be set a similar distance from the common boundary.

Page 47



An isolation distance of some 19m would exist between the southern elevation of the proposed 
building and the southern boundary of the site. To the south of the site are two garages and then 
the northern boundary, a side boundary, of no. 2 Spring Grove. A distance of some 25m would 
separate the southern elevation of the proposed building from the northern flank wall of 2 Spring 
Grove.  Although ground levels fall to the south, views towards the curtilage of 2 Spring Grove 
would be to the north facing flank wall and front garden of that property.

In conclusion with regard to impact to neighbours, the proposal would not have a harmful impact to 
the residential amenity of occupiers of neighbouring properties.  It would not cause any excessive 
loss of light or outlook and would not appear over bearing when seen from neighbouring land.  It is 
therefore concluded no excessive harm to neighbour’s living conditions would be caused by the 
proposal.

Residential amenity to occupiers of flats

Part of flat 1 would be partially terraced into the slope of the ground by the northern boundary of 
the site. Nevertheless, bedrooms and living rooms adjoin vertically to avoid disturbance and 
internally the flats seem to be of an adequate size and practical layout. 

The footprint of the building now proposed has been substantially reduced as compared with the 
footprint to the building proposed for 8 flats. This has enabled some amenity space to be provided 
where it would be largely screened by the built form of the building and with an aspect to the 
southeast. This space has an area of some 60 sq m.  While the limited size of private amenity 
space provision is contrary to Local Plan and Alterations Policy DBE8, since the site is situated 
within 200m of accessible parts of Epping Forest, it would not result in the flats having poor living 
conditions.  In coming to this conclusion, significant weight is given to the appeal Inspector’s 
finding that the dismissed 8 flat scheme, which provided similar or less private amenity space, 
would not result in poor living conditions for the proposed flats.

Highways and Parking

Parking provision on a one-for-one basis is considered to be acceptable in this location. It is noted 
that the site is not distant from public open space, in the form of the Warren Hill part of Epping 
Forest, and that part of the commercial centre of Loughton and Loughton London Underground 
Station are within a reasonable walking distance. It is therefore concluded the site is in a 
sustainable location.

ECC Highways has raised no objection on the basis of impact on highway safety.  The matter of 
car parking is for Planning Officers to gauge having regard to the Vehicle Parking Standards 2009.  
Given the appeal Inspectors findings in relation to the same one-for one provision of parking on 
the dismissed 8 flat scheme, there is no doubt that resisting the current proposal on parking 
grounds would not be supported at appeal.

Other matters

The site is situated within a sustainable urban location close to local services, facilities and public 
transport and would make more efficient use of this site. Given that 92.4% of the District is 
designated Green Belt the principle of further development within existing sustainable settlements 
outside of the Green Belt is generally considered to be appropriate, provided all other policies are 
complied with. In addition, paragraph 49 of the NPPF states that “housing applications should be 
considered in the context of the presumption in favour of sustainable development. Relevant 
policies for the supply of housing should not be considered up-to-date if the local planning 
authority cannot demonstrate a five-year supply of deliverable housing sites”.

Page 48



The Council is currently in the process of preparing a new Local Plan where sites will be identified 
for residential development however the latest figures reveal that the Council can currently only 
demonstrate a 1.35 year supply of land for housing purposes. Due to this it has been shown in 
several recent appeal decisions, both within and outside of the district that such a lack of a 
demonstrable five year supply of housing weighs in favour of granting planning permission. 
However, this still has to be weighed against other material planning considerations.

Conclusion:

This design, for six flats, has clearly sought to address issues raised with a previous proposal for 
eight flats as identified in the appeal Inspectors decision letter.  Officer’s assessment is that it is 
successful in doing so.  Moreover the proposal would make efficient use of land in a sustainable 
location to provide needed additional dwellings. Accordingly, it is recommended that planning 
permission be granted.

Should you wish to discuss the contents of this report item please use the following 
contact details by 2pm on the day of the meeting at the latest:

Planning Application Case Officer: Jonathan Doe
Direct Line Telephone Number: 01992 564103

or if no direct contact can be made please email:   contactplanning@eppingforestdc.gov.uk

Page 49



123

 

70.1m

69.5m

71.9m

174

El Sub Sta

52

69

79

46

79

60

77

81

172

64

1 to 14

164

160

8

156

9

Millbrook

5

6

34

35

65

49

51

10

11

8

1

13

3

7 to 10

146
1

152
Manor
Hall

1 
to

 6

2

15

11

M
O

U
N

T PLEASAN
T RO

AD

MANOR ROAD

DACRE GARDENS

DACRE CLOSE

STA
N

W
Y

C
K

 D
R

IV
E

Posts

EFDC

EFDC

Epping Forest District Council
Agenda Item Number 2

Unauthorised reproduction infringes 
Crown Copyright and may lead to 
prosecution or civil proceedings.

Contains Ordnance Survey Data. © 
Crown Copyright 2013 EFDC License No: 
100018534

Contains Royal Mail Data. © Royal Mail 
Copyright & Database Right 2013

Application Number: EPF/0385/17
Site Name: 160 Manor Road, Chigwell, IG7 5PX

Scale of Plot: 1/1250

Page 50



Report Item No: 2

APPLICATION No: EPF/0385/17

SITE ADDRESS: 160 Manor Road
Chigwell
Essex
IG7 5PX

PARISH: Chigwell

WARD: Grange Hill

APPLICANT: Mr Raheel Akhtar

DESCRIPTION OF 
PROPOSAL:

Amendment to consented application EPF/0679/15 as well as non-
material application EPF/1644/16. Internal layouts changed to 
allow for 5 flats instead of 4. Rear extension at basement level. 
Compliant parking. Updated landscape.

RECOMMENDED 
DECISION:

Grant Permission (With Conditions)

Click on the link below to view related plans and documents for this case:
http://planpub.eppingforestdc.gov.uk/NIM.websearch/ExternalEntryPoint.aspx?SEARCH_TYPE=1&DOC_CLASS_CODE=PL&FOLDER1_REF=591774

CONDITIONS 

1 The development hereby permitted must be begun not later than the expiration of 
three years beginning with the date of this notice.

2 The development hereby permitted will be completed strictly in accordance with the 
approved drawings nos: 
CB/17/12
CB/17/13
NMEF/14/20
NMEF/14/21
NMEF/14/22
CB/17/08
CB/17/10 revision A received 04.04.17
CB/17/01
CB/17/02
CB/17/03
CB/17/04
CB/17/05
CB/17/06
CB/17/07
CB/17/09
Design & Access Statement

3 No development shall take place until wheel washing or other cleaning facilities for 
vehicles leaving the site during construction works have been installed in 
accordance with details which shall be submitted to and agreed in writing by the 

Page 51

http://planpub.eppingforestdc.gov.uk/NIM.websearch/ExternalEntryPoint.aspx?SEARCH_TYPE=1&DOC_CLASS_CODE=PL&FOLDER1_REF=591774


Local Planning Authority. The approved installed cleaning facilities shall be used to 
clean vehicles immediately before leaving the site.

4 No development shall take place, including site clearance or other preparatory work, 
until full details of both hard and soft landscape works (including tree planting) and 
implementation programme (linked to the development schedule) have been 
submitted to an approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority. These works 
shall be carried out as approved. The hard landscaping details shall include, as 
appropriate, and in addition to details of existing features to be retained: proposed 
finished levels or contours; means of enclosure; car parking layouts; other minor 
artefacts and structures, including signs and lighting and functional services above 
and below ground. The details of soft landscape works shall include plans for 
planting or establishment by any means and full written specifications and schedules 
of plants, including species, plant sizes and proposed numbers /densities where 
appropriate. If within a period of five years from the date of the planting or 
establishment of any tree, or shrub or plant, that tree, shrub, or plant or any 
replacement is removed, uprooted or destroyed or dies or becomes seriously 
damaged or defective another tree or shrub, or plant of the same species and size 
as that originally planted shall be planted at the same place, unless the Local 
Planning Authority gives its written consent to any variation.

5 An assessment of flood risk, focussing on surface water drainage, shall be 
submitted to and approved by the Local Planning Authority prior to commencement 
of the development. The assessment shall demonstrate compliance with the 
principles of Sustainable Drainage Systems (SuDS). The development shall be 
carried out and maintained in accordance with the approved details.

6 The proposed use of this site has been identified as being particularly vulnerable if 
land contamination is present, despite no specific former potentially contaminating 
uses having been identified for this site.  

Should any discoloured or odorous soils be encountered during development works 
or should any hazardous materials or significant quantities of non-soil forming 
materials be found, then all development works should be stopped, the Local 
Planning Authority contacted and a scheme to investigate the risks and / or the 
adoption of any required remedial measures be submitted to, agreed and approved 
in writing by the Local Planning Authority prior to the recommencement of 
development works.

Following the completion of development works and prior to the first occupation of 
the site, sufficient information must be submitted to demonstrate that any required 
remedial measures were satisfactorily implemented or confirmation provided that no 
unexpected contamination was encountered.

7 All construction/demolition works and ancillary operations, including vehicle 
movement on site which are audible at the boundary of noise sensitive premises, 
shall only take place between the hours of 07.30 to 18.30 Monday to Friday and 
08.00 to 13.00 hours on Saturday, and at no time during Sundays and Public/Bank 
Holidays unless otherwise agreed in writing by the Local Planning Authority.

Page 52



8 All material excavated from the below ground works hereby approved shall be 
removed from the site unless otherwise agreed in writing by the Local Planning 
Authority.

9 Access to the rearmost 5m of the built form, the flat roof over the rearmost 5m of the 
lower ground floor as hereby approved shall be for maintenance or emergency 
purposes only and the flat roof shall not be used as a seating area, roof garden, 
terrace, patio or similar amenity area.

10 Prior to first occupation of the development, the proposed private drive shall be 
constructed to a minimum width of 5 metres for at least 6 metres from the back of 
the carriageway and provided with an appropriate dropped kerb crossing of the 
footway.

11 Prior to first occupation of the development, the developer shall be responsible for 
the provision - per dwelling - and implementation of a Residential Travel Information 
Pack for sustainable transport, approved by the local planning authority.

12 No unbound material shall be used in the surface treatment of the vehicular access 
within 6 metres of the highway boundary.

13 There shall be no discharge of surface water onto the highway.

14 Prior to demolition of the existing bungalow on the site, full written details of a 
permeable surface to the parking area outside the building shall be submitted to and 
approved in writing by the local planning authority. Such surface treatment as 
approved shall be implemented concurrently with the construction of the flats hereby 
approved and made available for use prior to first occupation of any flat hereby 
approved and be retained thereafter.

This application is before this Committee since it is an application for residential development 
consisting of 5 dwellings or more (unless approval of reserved matters only) and is recommended 
for approval (Pursuant to The Constitution, Part Three: Scheme of Delegation, Appendix 3)

Description of Site:

Detached bungalow with front dormer.  It is not Listed, nor in a Conservation Area.  

The bungalow is set between a two-storey house to the left hand side when viewing the site from 
Manor Road and a three-storey building with roof accommodation to the right hand side. The front 
boundary of the site has a brick wall with railings above. The site has a vehicular access to the left 

Page 53



hand side of the plot. The bungalow is set on ground somewhat higher than the level of Manor 
Road. To the rear of the bungalow the ground level falls.

Description of Proposal: 

The proposal is to demolish a bungalow on the site and erect a building to accommodate five flats. 
The building would have three storeys; ground and first storeys and a mansard type roof.

Two two-bedroom flats would be on the ground floor. These flats would have one bedroom at 
ground floor and another bedroom at a lower ground floor level. The second bedrooms would be 
set to the rear of the building where, due to falling ground levels to the rear of the site, windows 
would effectively be at a ground floor level. Two two-bedroom flats would be set on the first floor 
and a further two-bedroom flat would be set within a mansard type roof.

Four car parking spaces would be provided in front of the building and a vehicular ramp would give 
access to a basement providing six parking spaces.

All but the top floor flat would have sizeable terrace areas/balconies to the rear of the building, 
looking to the north by northwest.

Relevant History:

EPF/2902/14 Demolition of existing bungalow and erection of building to accommodate four two-
bedroomed flats with associated bin store, bicycle store and car parking. – 
Withdrawn 28/01/2015

EPF/0679/15 Demolition of existing bungalow and erection of building to accommodate four two-
bedroomed flats with associated bin store, bicycle store and car parking. (Revised 
design from EPF/2902/14) – Granted 30/07/2015

EPF/1644/16 Non-material amendment to planning application EPF/0679/15 (Demolition of 
existing bungalow and erection of building to accommodate four two-bedroomed 
flats with associated bin store, bicycle store and car parking. (Revised design from 
EPF/2902/14)) – Non-material amendment approved 13/07/2016

Policies Applied:

Adopted Local Plan:

CP2 Quality of Rural and Built Environment
H2A Previously Developed Land
H3A Housing Density
DBE1 Design of New Buildings
DBE2 Effect on Neighbouring Properties
DBE6 Car parking in New Development
DBE8 Private Amenity Space
DBE9 Loss of Amenity
LL11 Landscaping Schemes
ST4 Road Safety
ST6 Vehicle Parking

NPPF:

The National Planning Policy Framework (NPPF) has been adopted as national policy since March 
2012. Paragraph 215 states that due weight should be given to relevant policies in existing plans 

Page 54



according to their degree of consistency with the framework.  The above policies are broadly 
consistent with the NPPF and should therefore be given appropriate weight.

Draft Local Plan:

At the current time, only limited weight can be applied to the Draft Local Plan, however the Draft 
Plan and evidence base should be considered as a material consideration in planning decisions. 
The relevant policies in this case are as follows:

SP1                 Presumption in Favour of Sustainable Development
H1                   Housing Mix and Accommodation Types
DM9 High Quality Design
DM10              Housing Design and Quality
DM11              Waste Recycling Facilities on New Development
DM12              Subterranean, Basement Development and Light wells

Essex Design Guide SPD
ECC Revised Parking Standards (2009) SPD

Consultation Carried Out and Summary of Representations Received  

Number of neighbours consulted:  43
Site notice posted:  Yes
Responses received:  No response received from neighbours.
CHIGWELL PARISH COUNCIL:  No objection

Main Issues and Considerations:

This current application differs from an existing planning permission for flats on the site 
(EPF/0679/15) in that it is now for five rather than four flats. The additional flat has been created 
by internal re-arrangements within the shell of the building. Previously upper floor flats had a 
maisonette arrangement. Now the upper floor flats are both contained on the first floor and the 
additional flat is at second floor.

This means that the fifth flat has rear facing fenestration, in the form of full-height glazed folding 
doors onto a balcony type area, 1.5m deep, off the open plan kitchen and living room. Previously 
the design had two bedroom windows on the rear elevation at second floor. 

The second floor glazing on the rear elevation, to what is the additional flat, would be some 35m 
from the rear boundary of the application site, which adjoins the rear gardens of properties on 
Dacre Close. Notwithstanding that ground levels fall to the rear of the site, this distance is 
considered sufficient such that no material adverse impact would result in terms of loss of privacy 
to neighbours. Furthermore, the building to the east of the application site, Millbrook, has glazing 
and balcony areas at the same height, or possibly slightly higher than, the height of the rear 
elevation to the now proposed top floor flat.

Another change from the previously approved plans is that at the rear of the building the basement 
floor, what would appear as a ground floor at the rear of the building, would now be 5m deeper. 
This change is effectively a 5m deep flat roofed rear extension to the previously approved form of 
the building. However, the roof of this additional element would be level with the ground levels of 
properties on both adjoining sites to the sides and accordingly would not change assessments of 
daylight and sunlight previously made.

Design and Appearance

Page 55



The existing bungalow on the site would appear to date from the 1950’s and now appears as a 
somewhat incongruous building set between the two-storey with hipped roof built form at 158 and 
the substantial built form at Millbrook Court, of three full storeys and roof with front dormers. The 
front wall of the proposed building would be slightly forward of the front wall of the house at 158 
Manor Road but not as far forward into its plot as the nearest front wall of Millbrook Court. The 
appearance of the building, which appears to have been inspired by classical design, would fit well 
between built forms on adjoining plots and whilst this is a proposal of some depth, it is masked by 
the presence of the buildings on either side and therefore will have little visual impact. The building 
will in fact visually enhance this part of the street scene.  At the rear, the visual impact will be 
similar to the large flat development next door at Millbrook, however, there are no public views of it 
and the houses in Dacre Gardens to the north are a significant distance away. 

The proposal, in design and scale, conforms to the character of the area and improves on the 
appearance of the current building on the site, complying with the NPPF requirement of good 
design in planning and Local Plan policies CP2 and DBE1.  

Amenity Impact – 158 Manor Road

With regard to the living conditions of neighbours, 158 Manor Road is to the west by southwest of 
the proposed flats. The principal windows of the house at 158 are to the front and to the rear. At 
the rear, both the proposed building and 158 would be 1m from their common side boundary which 
is marked by a close boarded fence some 2m in height. The lower ground floor, despite extending 
rearwards by 9.6m beyond the main wall of no.158, will be directly below the bottom of the dividing 
fence and therefore not visible from no.158. 

The ground floor at the rear (level in height to the ground floor of no.158) would be 6.5 m deeper 
into the plot than the main rearmost ground floor wall of no. 158 but set some 2.5m inside of the 
side boundary fence and therefore 4.5m in from their nearest ground floor rear facing window. This 
separation distance and the fact there is a 2m boundary screen, will safeguard the amenity of 
no.158. 

The proposed first floor will be at the same height of the first floor of no.158 and project 3.6m 
beyond but at a distance of 5.5m from their first floor window. The arrangement is such that the 
first floor rear windows of no. 158 would not cut a 45 degree line, which is a rule of thumb in 
respect of impact on outlook from neighbours. The proposed mansard shape second floor would 
be the same depth beyond no.158’s roof (which has rear facing dormers) and also not cause harm 
to light or outlook. .

Proposed sight screens, of opaque glass, will prevent overlooking from the proposed terraces and 
the first floor balcony at the rear. Whilst the new building will visually project rearwards at first and 
second floor level as viewed from no.158, the 45 degree rule of thumb measure will be maintained. 
This neighbour will not be significantly overlooked, particularly given the existing and proposed 
screening. It is therefore considered that the amenity of no.158 will not be unduly harmed and it 
therefore complies with the NPPF and policies DBE2 and DBE9 of the Local Plan. 

Amenity Impact – Millbrook Court

To the east, the four storey flatted development at Millbrook Court is set 5m from the side 
boundary. The proposed built form above the ground floor storey would not cut into a line drawn at 
45 degrees from the face of the windows at ground and first floors on the rear of Millbrook Court. 
Again, the revised rear elevation relative to Millbrook has clarified the relationship between the two 
properties and there will be no loss of light or outlook. 

Other Amenity Impact

Page 56



An open rear amenity area some 35m in depth would be retained between the proposed building 
and the rear boundary with properties on Dacre Close. The proposal would safeguard the living 
conditions of neighbours.

Other Matters

This current design has “softened” the appearance of the area between the building and the plot 
frontage as compared to previous proposals for the site, by significant strips of landscaping and a 
visually meaningful extent of landscaping between the car park and the front of the building. As 
previously, sustainable drainage to the parking area will be addressed by condition.

Ten car parking spaces would be provided for the five flats, delivering two spaces for each flat.  
The proposed level of provision meets the standards adopted by the Council in respect of the 
number of spaces required for each new dwelling.  No parking spaces for visitors are proposed, 
and none can easily be provided.  However, that arrangement is unlikely to cause difficulty in this 
location due to the relatively small scale of the development.  The Highway Authority does not 
consider the proposal likely to cause harm to the free and safe movement of traffic, including 
pedestrian movement.

The site is situated within a sustainable urban location, with Grange Hill station less than 500m 
away to the east, close to local services, facilities and public transport and would make more 
efficient use of this site. Given that 92.4% of the District is designated Green Belt the principle of 
further development within existing sustainable settlements outside of the Green Belt is generally 
considered to be appropriate, provided all other policies are complied with. In addition, paragraph 
49 of the NPPF states that “housing applications should be considered in the context of the 
presumption in favour of sustainable development. Relevant policies for the supply of housing 
should not be considered up-to-date if the local planning authority cannot demonstrate a five-year 
supply of deliverable housing sites”.

The Council is currently in the process of preparing a new Local Plan where sites will be identified 
for residential development however the latest figures reveal that the Council can currently only 
demonstrate a 1.35 year supply of land for housing purposes. Due to this it has been shown in 
several recent appeal decisions, both within and outside of the district that such a lack of a 
demonstrable five year supply of housing weighs in favour of granting planning permission. 
However, this still has to be weighed against other material planning considerations.

Conclusion:

The proposal complies with relevant planning policy and the proposed building will enhance the 
appearance of the street scene without causing undue harm to amenity of acknowledged 
importance. It is recommended that planning permission be granted.

Should you wish to discuss the contents of this report item please use the following 
contact details by 2pm on the day of the meeting at the latest:

Planning Application Case Officer: Jonathan Doe
Direct Line Telephone Number: 01992 564103

or if no direct contact can be made please email:   contactplanning@eppingforestdc.gov.uk

Page 57



123

 

EFDC

EFDC

Epping Forest District Council
Agenda Item Number 3

Unauthorised reproduction infringes 
Crown Copyright and may lead to 
prosecution or civil proceedings.

Contains Ordnance Survey Data. © 
Crown Copyright 2013 EFDC License No: 
100018534

Contains Royal Mail Data. © Royal Mail 
Copyright & Database Right 2013

Application Number: EPF/0540/17
Site Name: 51 Manor Road, Chigwell, IG7 5PL

Scale of Plot: 1/1250

Page 58



Report Item No: 3

APPLICATION No: EPF/0540/17

SITE ADDRESS: 51 Manor Road
Chigwell
Essex
IG7 5PL

PARISH: Chigwell

WARD: Grange Hill

APPLICANT: Mr & Mrs Vickeneswaran

DESCRIPTION OF 
PROPOSAL:

Demolition of existing private family residence and replacement 
with new private family residence.

RECOMMENDED 
DECISION:

Grant Permission (With Conditions)

Click on the link below to view related plans and documents for this case:
http://planpub.eppingforestdc.gov.uk/NIM.websearch/ExternalEntryPoint.aspx?SEARCH_TYPE=1&DOC_CLASS_CODE=PL&FOLDER1_REF=592241

CONDITIONS 

1 The development hereby permitted must be begun not later than the expiration of 
three years beginning with the date of this notice.

2 The development hereby permitted will be completed strictly in accordance with the 
approved drawings nos: 
Site location plan
FRC-101
FRC-102
FRC-103
FRC-110
FRC-111
FRC-112
FRC-113
FRC-114
FRC-115

3 If any tree, shrub or hedge shown to be retained in the submitted Arboricultural 
reports is removed, uprooted or destroyed, or dies, or becomes severely damaged 
or diseased during development activities or within 3 years of the completion of the 
development, another tree, shrub or hedge of the same size and species shall be 
planted within 3 months at the same place, unless the Local Planning Authority 
gives its written consent to any variation. If within a period of five years from the date 
of planting any replacement tree, shrub or hedge is removed, uprooted or destroyed, 
or dies or becomes seriously damaged or defective another tree, shrub or hedge of 
the same
species and size as that originally planted shall, within 3 months, be planted at the 

Page 59

http://planpub.eppingforestdc.gov.uk/NIM.websearch/ExternalEntryPoint.aspx?SEARCH_TYPE=1&DOC_CLASS_CODE=PL&FOLDER1_REF=592241


same place.

4 No construction works above ground level shall take place until documentary and 
photographic details of the types and colours of the external finishes have been 
submitted to and approved by the Local Planning Authority, in writing. The 
development shall be implemented in accordance with such approved details.

5 Prior to first occupation of the development hereby approved, the proposed window 
openings in the western and the eastern flank elevations, with the sole exceptions of 
the prayer room and of bedroom 4 as shown on the approved plans, shall be entirely 
fitted with obscured glass and have fixed frames to a height of 1.7 metres above the 
floor of the room in which the window is installed and shall be permanently retained 
in that condition.

6 Access to the flat roof over the attached garages as hereby approved shall be for 
maintenance or emergency purposes only and the flat roof shall not be used as a 
seating area, roof garden, terrace, patio or similar amenity area.

7 Notwithstanding the provisions of the Town & Country Planning (General Permitted 
Development) (England) Order 2015 (or of any equivalent provision in any Statutory 
Instrument revoking or re-enacting that Order), the garage(s) hereby approved shall 
be retained so that it is capable of allowing the parking of cars together with any 
ancillary storage in connection with the residential use of the site, and shall at no 
time be converted into a room or used for any other purpose.

8 Notwithstanding the provisions of the Town and Country Planning (General 
Permitted Development) (England) Order 2015 as amended (or any other Order 
revoking, further amending or re-enacting that Order) no extensions, enlargements 
of the roof or roof-lights generally permitted by virtue of Classes A, B and C of Part 1 
of Schedule 2 to the Order  shall be undertaken without the prior written permission 
of the Local Planning Authority.

9 No development shall take place, including site clearance or other preparatory work, 
until full details of both hard and soft landscape works (including tree planting) and 
implementation programme (linked to the development schedule) have been 
submitted to an approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority. These works 
shall be carried out as approved. The hard landscaping details shall include, as 
appropriate, and in addition to details of existing features to be retained: proposed 
finished levels or contours; means of enclosure; car parking layouts; other minor 
artefacts and structures, including signs and lighting and functional services above 
and below ground. The details of soft landscape works shall include plans for 
planting or establishment by any means and full written specifications and schedules 
of plants, including species, plant sizes and proposed numbers /densities where 
appropriate. If within a period of five years from the date of the planting or 
establishment of any tree, or shrub or plant, that tree, shrub, or plant or any 
replacement is removed, uprooted or destroyed or dies or becomes seriously 
damaged or defective another tree or shrub, or plant of the same species and size 
as that originally planted shall be planted at the same place, unless the Local 
Planning Authority gives its written consent to any variation.

Page 60



10 No development, including works of demolition or site clearance, shall take place 
until a Tree Protection Plan Arboricultural Method Statement and site monitoring 
schedule in accordance with BS:5837:2012 (Trees in relation to design, demolition 
and construction - recommendations) has been submitted to the Local Planning 
Authority and approved in writing. The development shall be carried out only in 
accordance with the approved documents unless the Local Planning Authority gives 
its written consent to any variation.

11 A flood risk assessment and management and maintenance plan shall be submitted 
to and approved by the Local Planning Authority prior to commencement of 
development. The assessment shall include calculations of increased run-off and 
associated volume of storm detention using WinDes or other similar best practice 
tools. The approved measures shall be carried out prior to the substantial 
completion of the development and shall be adequately maintained in accordance 
with the management and maintenance plan.

12 The proposed use of this site has been identified as being particularly vulnerable if 
land contamination is present, despite no specific former potentially contaminating 
uses having been identified for this site.  

Should any discoloured or odorous soils be encountered during development works 
or should any hazardous materials or significant quantities of non-soil forming 
materials be found, then all development works should be stopped, the Local 
Planning Authority contacted and a scheme to investigate the risks and / or the 
adoption of any required remedial measures be submitted to, agreed and approved 
in writing by the Local Planning Authority prior to the recommencement of 
development works.

Following the completion of development works and prior to the first occupation of 
the site, sufficient information must be submitted to demonstrate that any required 
remedial measures were satisfactorily implemented or confirmation provided that no 
unexpected contamination was encountered.

13 All construction/demolition works and ancillary operations, including vehicle 
movement on site which are audible at the boundary of noise sensitive premises, 
shall only take place between the hours of 07.30 to 18.30 Monday to Friday and 
08.00 to 13.00 hours on Saturday, and at no time during Sundays and Public/Bank 
Holidays unless otherwise agreed in writing by the Local Planning Authority.

14 All material excavated from the below ground works hereby approved shall be 
removed from the site unless otherwise agreed in writing by the Local Planning 
Authority.

15 Concurrently with the construction of the house and prior to first occupation, sights 
splays, 1.8m in height relative to the floor of the respective balcony and of a solid or 
obscure glazed material, shall be erected to both sides of both balconies and 
retained as such thereafter unless the prior written consent of the local planning 
authority is given to any alteration.

Page 61



This application is before this Committee since the recommendation is for approval contrary to an 
objection from a local council which is material to the planning merits of the proposal (Pursuant to 
The Constitution, Part Three: Scheme of Delegation, Appendix 3)

Description of Site:

The application property is a substantial detached house. The ground floor is of brickwork and the 
first floor has the appearance of black beams with white plaster between. The house is set nearly 
30m back from the road.

The plot is some 25m wide by some 90m deep.

The property is not listed and is not in a Conservation Area.

Description of Proposal: 

Demolition of existing private family residence and replacement with new private family residence.

The front elevation would have a classical style with a symmetrical design to the front elevation. 
The house would be of two storeys plus a Mansard style roof. A single width garage would be 
attached to the house to both sides.

The house itself would have a maximum width of 19.3m with flat roofed garaging, behind a 
parapet, infilling between the house and a side boundary to both sides.
The main body of the house, excluding a curved front bay with canopy in front, would have a 
maximum depth of some 24.4m. The house would have two storeys, plus basement, and 
accommodation within a crown roof. The maximum height of the roof would be 9.6m.

The basement would contain a staff suite, gymnasium, pool and sauna. The ground floor would 
have a circular entrance hall, five reception rooms, kitchen and ground floor bedroom. The first 
floor would accommodate the main bedroom; with bathroom, dressing room, prayer room and 
kitchenette en-suite; and three other bedrooms, all with en-suite facilities. Within the crown roof 
would be four bedrooms, with en-suite facilities, a family bathroom and a room for children’s play 
and study. The roof plan shows an array of 20 photovoltaic panels. A lift would serve the basement 
and all floors above.

External materials would be fair-face brick with Portland stone quoins, cornices, portico, parapets, 
stringer courses and window and door reveals. Windows would have frames of painted timber and 
be double glazed. Rainwater goods, guttering and downpipes, would be of black coated metal. 
The roof would be of natural slate to the mansard faces with lead clad dormers and lead to the top 
surface of the roof.

Relevant History:

CHI/0223/72 Extension – Granted 24/05/1972

EPF/1228/85 Two storey side extension. – Granted 08/11/1985

EPF/2371/16 Demolition of existing private family residence and replacement with new 8 
bedroom private family residence. – Withdrawn 09/12/2016

Policies Applied:

Adopted Local Plan:

Page 62



CP1                 Achieving Sustainable Development Objectives 
CP2 Quality of Rural and Built Environment
CP3                New Development
CP4                Energy Conservation
CP5                Sustainable Building
CP7                Urban Form and Quality
DBE1              Design of New Buildings
DBE2              Effect on Neighbouring Properties
DBE3              Design in Urban Areas
DBE5              Design and Layout of new development
DBE6              Car Parking in New Development
DBE8              Private Amenity Space
DBE9              Loss of Amenity
ST4                 Road Safety
ST6                 Vehicle Parking
H2A                 Previously Developed Land
H3A                 Housing Density
H4A                 Dwelling Mix
LL8                  Works to protected trees
LL9                  Felling of preserved trees
LL10                Adequacy of provision for landscape retention
LL11                Landscaping Schemes

NPPF:

The National Planning Policy Framework (NPPF) has been adopted as national policy since March 
2012. Paragraph 215 states that due weight should be given to relevant policies in existing plans 
according to their degree of consistency with the framework.  The above policies are broadly 
consistent with the NPPF and should therefore be given appropriate weight.

Draft Local Plan:

At the current time, only limited weight can be applied to the Draft Local Plan, however the Draft 
Plan and evidence base should be considered as a material consideration in planning decisions. 
The relevant policies in this case are as follows:

DM5                Green Infrastructure: Design of Development
DM9 High Quality Design
DM10              Housing Design and Quality
DM12              Subterranean, Basement Development and Lightwells
DM16              Sustainable Drainage Systems
DM20              Low Carbon and Renewable Energy

Consultation Carried Out and Summary of Representations Received  

Number of neighbours consulted:  9
Site notice posted:  Yes
Responses received:  No response from neighbours
CHIGWELL PARISH COUNCIL:  The Council OBJECTS to this application because the proposed 
replacement is an over-development of the site and is entirely out of character with the 
neighbouring properties on this part of Manor Road.

Page 63



Main Issues and Considerations:

The main issues to be considered are design and impact to street scene, impact to neighbouring 
properties and landscaping.

Design and appearance in streetscene

In terms of appearance the proposal is for demolition of the existing neo-Tudor house and 
replacement with a house of a classical style. 

The existing house on the site is of an undistinguished appearance with an integral double garage 
appearing somewhat at odds with the appearance of the first floor which, with painted panels 
between exposed beams, would seem to have been inspired by medieval buildings. The proposed 
house, however, would introduce a fresh style of design within its immediate neighbours and 
would have similarities with the house at 63 Manor Road, the fifth house to the east along this side 
of the road.

Planning permission (EPF/1897/10) was granted for no. 63 on the conclusion that that house 
would have an acceptable appearance.

On the other side of the road, at no. 74, a house with similarities to that proposed exists 
(EPF/0997/04, Elevational changes to front and rear; two storey side extension and rear swimming 
pool enclosure, refers).

The architectural style is very similar to a house, currently under construction, at no. 59, the third 
property to the east. This has been the subject of a number of planning applications but the overall 
character to the front elevation would seem to have been accepted when planning permission, 
EPF/1793/14, was granted in 2014.

Whilst the design is somewhat at odds with that of neighbouring properties, the NPPF points out, 
at paragraph 60, that planning decisions should not attempt to impose architectural styles. 
Unsubstantiated requirements to conform to certain development forms or styles should not be 
made.

Some concern was raised by the Parish Council regarding the height of the previous withdrawn 
proposal. The street elevation drawing indicates that this current proposal is in line with heights of 
some of the newer properties, and less high than, for instance, No. 59 Manor Road, which was 
designed by the same Architects.  Moreover, the proposal has been designed to ensure good 
visual separation from the site boundaries.  At first floor the flank walls of the house would be set a 
minimum of just over 3m from the site boundaries with a minimum distance of 6m separating the 
western flank from the flank of 49 Manor Road and 4.3m separating the eastern flank from the 
flank of 53 manor Road.  Single storey side projections that would be used as garages would abut 
the site boundaries, but since they would be set significantly rear of the front elevation the 
appearance of a clear visual break between the main bulk of the house and the neighbouring 
houses would also be maintained.

On the matter of design it is therefore concluded that, whilst the proposal is of a significant scale 
and contrasting architectural style to that of the immediate neighbours, it safeguards the 
townscape by ensuring it would have an appropriate visual relationship to its neighbours and by 
following a pattern of similar designs permitted within the wider context of Manor Road.

Impact to neighbours

With regards to overlooking, there would be a balcony at both first and second floor levels on the 
rear elevation, off the main bedroom and off the children’s play/study room respectively. A rear 

Page 64



garden of some 38m in depth would be retained and numerous mature trees exist within the site 
along the side boundaries. Nevertheless, given the perception of overlooking that these balconies 
could create, particularly that at second floor, it is considered reasonable to impose a condition to 
require sight screens to the flanks of both balconies. With such a condition views would be of a 
similar nature to those of neighbouring properties which have rear facing first floor windows and 
dormer windows in the roof.

The internal layout has been designed in such a way that principal windows are front and rear. 
Flank windows above the ground floor are almost exclusively to en-suite facilities, to rooms with a 
window on another elevation or other rooms for which it would be reasonable to require obscure 
glazing. The only two exceptions are narrow windows for the prayer room and bedroom 4. 
However, these rooms would look onto the rear corner of the house at no. 53 and a front corner of 
the house at no. 49 respectively. 53 Manor Road has a side window at first floor facing the 
application site but this appears to be to a landing and is in any case set further forward within its 
site than the position of the prayer room window.

It is considered that, subject to a condition relating to obscure glazing, the proposal is acceptable 
with regard to privacy of neighbours.

With regard to light and outlook there are two neighbours to be considered, nos. 49 and 53, to 
each side of the site.

49 Manor Road is set to the west by southwest. A front corner of a garage would be 3m forward of 
the nearest front corner of no. 49 but the flank of no. 49 is set off the boundary such that a line 
drawn at 45 degrees from the front corner of no. 49 would intersect the front corner of the garage. 
The rear of the proposed house would not be as deep into the plot as the rear elevation of no. 49. 
Rear elevations of the houses in question face south.

53 Manor Road, the neighbouring house to the other side, is orientated to the east by northeast. 
This house is set somewhat further forward in its plot than the position of the proposed house. No 
loss of outlook from any front window would occur as a result of the proposal. However, no. 53 has 
two first floor side windows facing the application site. By the front corner is a window in a dormer 
set on a side cat slide roof. This window is set some 2m off the side boundary. The front elevation 
of the proposed house would be set back some 2m in comparison to the footprint of the exiting 
house and it is considered that no adverse impact that could reasonably form a reason for refusal 
would result from the proposal in relation to the side dormer window of no. 53.

No. 53 also has a first floor side window set back along the side elevation facing the application 
site. However, this is set some 4m away from the side boundary and its position in relation to the 
house suggests that it may well be to a landing rather than a habitable room. This window already 
looks generally onto the built form of the existing house and it is considered on balance that any 
impact to this window would not be so great as to reasonably constitute a reason for refusal.

Landscaping

All trees on this site and on adjacent sites are protected by Tree Preservation Orders. However, 
the Trees and Landscaping Team raises no objection subject to standard conditions being 
imposed on any planning permission.

Other matters

The proposed house would have an extensive basement of almost the same size as the footprint 
of the house. However, in relation to the generous size of the front and rear gardens the basement 
would take up a modest proportion of the site. No objection has been raised to the basement with 
regard to trees or drainage.

Page 65



The use of photovoltaic panels to the roof is welcomed.

Conclusion:

The architectural style of the proposal would contrast with its neighbours, but its scale, height and 
degree of set in from the site boundaries ensures the contrast can be satisfactorily accommodated 
within its setting. Moreover, there are a number of similarly designed houses within the wider 
context of manor Road.  Consequently the proposal would respect the character and appearance 
of the locality.  In relation to neighbours living conditions it is considered that with appropriate use 
of conditions no material adverse impact would result to neighbours. With regard to tree matters 
the proposal is acceptable. Accordingly the proposal is recommended for approval.

Should you wish to discuss the contents of this report item please use the following 
contact details by 2pm on the day of the meeting at the latest:

Planning Application Case Officer: Jonathan Doe
Direct Line Telephone Number: 01992 564103

or if no direct contact can be made please email:   contactplanning@eppingforestdc.gov.uk

Page 66


	Agenda
	2 ADVICE TO PUBLIC AND SPEAKERS ATTENDING THE COUNCIL PLANNING SUB-COMMITTEES
	Plans South Map
	Area Planning Subcommittee South - members photo sheet 16-17

	3 Minutes
	Minutes
	69 Development Control

	7 Development Control
	South Agenda Schedule 26 April 2017


